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NEIL W]y
Corporate

Profile

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited has been listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong since 2003. The Group is the leading
producer of fermentation-based amino acids, food additive products and
cassava starch-based industrial products in Asia. Our products are sold to
food distributors, international trading companies, and manufacturers of
food, paper, textile, and chemical products in Vietnam and other ASEAN
countries, the PRC, Japan, Taiwan and several European countries. Most of
our products are marketed under the VEDAN brand name.
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Since the 1970s, our products have been marketed in Vietnam, the
PRC, and other ASEAN countries. To accelerate market expansion, the
Group established Vietnam Vedan in 1991 as our major production
base. Since then, the Group's production has undergoing continuous
expansion due to strong growing demand. The Group is currently
the largest MSG producer in the Southeast Asian region, and the
largest supplier of lysine and cassava starch-based industrial products
in Vietnam. In 1995, Vedan acquired a factory in Xiamen to focus on
developing the PRC market. In 2004, the Group further acquired the
assets and MSG business of Shanghai Vedan Foods Company Limited,
which will be developed into its business operations center in the
PRC, signifying its determination and commitment to become a major
player in the PRC market. To ensure the Group has a stable supply of
starch and a strong production platform for starch related products,
Vedan Vietnam acquired Ve-Thai Tapioca-Starch Co. Ltd. in November

2005. In December the same year, Shandong Vedan Snowflake
Enterprise Co., Ltd. was established and started production of GA
in April 2006. Shandong Vedan Snowflake will play a crucial role in
Vedan’s global supply chain in the future, allowing it to meet the
demand and to stabilise prices of raw materials, hence facilitate its
business development strategy in China.

Leveraging on our production facilities located in Vietnam and
China, steady upstream supply of raw materials, our possessing of
advanced fermentation production technology and other biochemical
processing technology, coupled with the experienced management
team, the Group boasts strong competitiveness over its peers.
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Financial Highlights

MBEE
BE+=-A=+—-HILEE
For the year ended 31 December
2011 2010
UsS$’000 Us$'000 Difference
FEx F=T =2
Revenue Wz 382,900 336,107 13.9%
Profit before income tax B P15 B Bl & 11,021 1,955 463.7%
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners e AESER (EE) 7,902 (1,480) N/A 5
Owners’ equity A AR 271,621 266,176 2.0%
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BRERNRF
(US cents) (E8) (Al 0.52 (0.10)  N/A TiEH
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share BRESRF
(US cents) (E18) (=) 0.52 (0.10)  N/A TiEH
Interim dividend per share (US cents) TR ERR S (=) N/A RiE A N/A iE N/A A& B
Final dividend per share (US cents) BRI S (3=A0) 0.311 0.240 29.6%
PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS REVENUE
‘EAEGRR BHiE W 3=
in US$:000 F =7t in US$000 F 37T
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REVENUE BY PRODUCTS
REERSBE2ZWE

12 months ended 31 Dec 2011
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Armed With Modern Technology And Sound

Management, We Have Successfully Created A Number Of
Quality Products To Cater To The Consumers’ Tastes And
Demands.

BERANERAREE RARYKASEGEER
BUMAHEE N OKMER-

Long-established in Asia, Vedan International
(Holdings) Limited is a premier manufacturer
of fermentation-based amino acids, food
additive and cassava starch-based products.
Its prominent reputation has been built on
the quality manufacture of MSG, a key food
additive lying at the heart of the unique
tastes of Asia’s two billion consumers. The
Group's vision of the future is simple: to
expand and enrich its markets across the
Asian region while developing new products
for the demand of consumers.

PRAFEIRR (F2AR) AR AR B M - 2 AR R
FERMEERER RANNYDINARZRY
BERHNMBEER -KABROKINEER
HAEBEMKBER L MLEBRMAM
MEDH - HEBERSNORPEEEEM
- REARKH) B AR IR R nsR M5 -
LRMEM UnBHEENFLK
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

The year of 2011 was a challenging year for the Group's overall
operation. Although we have dedicated effort in boosting sales,
the cost of materials and energies have surged to historical highs
primarily due to tight supplies of agricultural products. These rising
costs have placed a burden on our operations and have seriously
eroded our margins. At the same time, the Vietnamese economy
has remained stagnant, characterised by increasing inflation, a
depreciating Vietnam Dong, rising interest rates and slower economic
growth. This unfavourable backdrop has not only seriously affected
our overall operations at Vietnam plant but also domestic sales as
well. While the results for the period under review recorded an
increase, the total profit was lower than expected. On the other
hand, limited production scale and rocketing material costs led to
higher production costs and dragged down both financial results
and profitability of the Group’s operation in the PRC. In 2011, we
devoted substantial efforts to mitigate the adverse effects of the
business environment, notably the rising prices of raw materials and
energy, through increasing the flexibility in procurement, optimising
production efficiency, improving workflow, stepping up sales
efforts, and a review aimed at enhancing our speed of response and
effectiveness of our procedures to any environmental changes.

RFHEIRR () BRAR

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited

SER_T——FEBENEE BETEREDN
B BABONEBHENREA BX2RH
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% ERRARER S ERERBMHRE N
HER-EE T —FHNEIEZLESHDH
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BORFHENE R HRREB L EE
R E B ARSI R R R R
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

Looking at the Group's results and profit in 2011, turnover reached
US$383,000,000, a gain of approximately 13.9% from 2010. In
terms of both products and geography, the Group has strived to
extend its business and increase the selling price to achieve its
operational goals. However, overall consumption sentiment in
Vietnam has become more conservative amidst volatile economic
conductions in the country and this has also to some extent
negatively affected domestic sales. In view of these developments,
the Group has increased its sales to overseas markets. Although
export sales could partially offset the pressures on turnover and
exchange rates, the relatively lower prices demanded by customers in
some export regions combined with rising prices of major materials
and energy led to a year-on-year reduction of 2.5% in gross profit
margin to 14.7%. Moreover, as the Vietnam Dong depreciated
by nearly 10% in 2011 and the price of all raw materials, fees
and wages increased as a result of inflation, these factors have
counterbalanced the profit of the Vietnam plant. Within the Group’s
operation in the PRC during the period, the twin forces of lower
utilisation of production capacity and rises in raw material and energy
costs, has lifted the production cost and brought a loss to Shandong
plant this year. Taking account of the plant’s actual production and
sales along with the effectiveness of resources utilisation, the Group
has allocated a reasonable amount as a provision for impairment.
Management is to examine the overall market demand and supply
to come up with a new strategy or solution for improvement or
restructuring if necessary. For the Shanghai plant, due to a change of
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

operational direction, the Group has made a reasonable gain through
the disposal of the idle land in 2011. As affected by the above-
mentioned key factors, the Group recorded net operating profit of
US$5,940,000 and profit attributable to owners of US$7,900,000.

In terms of geographical distribution, the Group recorded growth
in Vietnam and Japan, its major markets, of 6.2% and 29.5%
respectively, when compared with the same period last year,
and the Group also managed to maintain the selling price of its
products. ASEAN and European countries have shown notable
growth as well. As for segmental performance, due to a steady
demand and continued expansion of sales network, sales of major
products including MSG, modified starch and specialty chemicals
such as hydrochloric acid and caustic soda also expanded steadily
in 2011, realising year-on-year growth of 14%, 26.5% and 16.9%
respectively. With the Group’s marketing efforts gradually bearing
fruit, sales of fertiliser and feed products surged by 62.5% when
compared with the same period last year. With regards to the PRC
operation, the Group recorded a 9.7% decrease in 2011 mainly
attributable to higher production costs caused by rising raw material
prices, so we could not realise economies of scale in the production
of MSG. As the MSG market was changing rapidly, along with rising
production cost and intensified competition, market prices also
fluctuated sharply during the period, thus we were unable to reach
the profit target, which subsequently dragged down the Group's
overall profit.

Looking into 2012, despite the slowdown of rising raw material
prices, the inflation, labour cost, electricity and energy costs in
Vietnam are very likely to cast a burden on production costs. As
such, the Group is seeking ways to improve production efficiency and
save energy. The Group is expanding and diversifying procurement
sources to secure materials at a lower price to minimise fluctuations
in supply and stablise production costs. In Vietnam, uncertainties
over the economy in 2011 are expected to carrying over into 2012,
which needs further operational enhancement in the market. At
such a critical time, apart from rationalising production costs, the
Group is continuing to consolidate its presence in major markets and
maintain product prices to preserve profit margins. With regard to
operations in Vietnam, the Group intends to aggressively strengthen
its marketing strategies, as well as further expand distribution and
sales channels in order to realise the full potential of the Group's
sales network. At the same time, to further raise brand awareness,
the Group is planning to launch new products related to current
product lines, as well as enhance its sales presence. On the other

10 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited T3 EIBE (25%) MR A =
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

hand, the Group is identifying potential collaborative projects to
bolster its geographical coverage, enhance its international exposure,
and ultimately improve efficiency while broadening revenue and
profit streams. As the Group’s operations in the PRC have performed
under expectations in recent years, the management has planned
the transformation of different operations. Towards this end, the
Group will consolidate production bases to lower the cost and make
larger adjustments on the related business strategies and the overall
marketing structure while pursuing geographical consolidation
and sales network expansion to achieve greater efficiencies. The
Group's primary objective in 2012 is to make the business profitable.
It will maintain a prudent operational approach by leveraging its
core strengths, including securing stable supplies of raw materials,
improving production efficiencies, rationalising production costs,
developing related new products and strengthening its sales
channels.

The current operating environment remains fraught with uncertainty.
The management is required to immediately respond to such rapidly
changing environment in a manner that will deliver stable business
performance. The management, however, remains optimistic about
the fundamentals of the Group’s core businesses, production
technologies and distribution network. Leveraging on our established
geographical advantage, the Group can flexibly adjust operating
strategies embarking on market expansion and enhancing our
brand value, the potential negative impact of the macroeconomic
environment on the Group should be minimised. These actions can
also enable the Group to achieve higher profit. The management
and all staff members are embracing improved profitability as their
mission while enhancing the Group's operating performance and
executing our strategy in a prudent optimistic fashion in order to
achieve our operating goals at the same time.

By Order of the Board
Yang, Tou-Hsiung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2012
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Standing Out
In a Specialised
Industry




As a successful long-term player in a
market with significant entry barriers,
Vedan International has distinct competitive
advantages that add real value to its
products. With advanced expertise in large-
scale fermentation technology, starch
processing conversion technology and
chemical and electro-chemical technology,
Vedan International is developing new
products which represent the latest
breakthroughs in industrial science and look
set to be major profit drivers in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE WD

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

After the recovery of the global economy gained steam
throughout 2010, the momentum was interrupted in 2011. The
political upheaval in the Middle East and North Africa which
broke out in early 2011 sparked a rise in oil prices, which in
turn slowed consumer spending in developed countries. The
earthquake and tsunami in Japan in March caused a disaster
at a nuclear power facility which alarmed the world and
severely disrupted that country’s economy. During the third
quarter, the downgrade of the sovereign debt of the US by
international credit ratings authorities and the persistently
high unemployment rate there has negatively affected other
economic indices. This was shortly followed by the European
debt crisis in the fourth quarter which has to date not been
effectively resolved and has also brought about a debate among
the members of the EU over whether the continued existence
of the EURO zone is viable.

The drivers of global economic growth have substantially
slowed down in 2011, particularly in the US and Europe.
Affected by the global economic environment, Vietnam, the
Group's main production and distribution market had not fully
recovered, and recorded a lower economic growth rate of
5.89%, down from 6.78% in 2010. The PRC economy grew
9.2%, also lower than the 10.4% last year. Despite the reduced
growth and its subsequent impact on sales demand, the efforts
of the Group’s management team have achieved satisfactory
results in all regions, except the PRC. Sales of the Group’s major
products have shown double digit growth. The Group's overall
revenue this year reached US$382,900,000, a rise of US$
46,793,000 or 13.9% when compared with US$336,107,000
recorded last year.

During the year under review, the price of natural gas used by
the Vietnam plant rose substantially. An upward adjustment
in the price of electricity was made twice in Vietnam and
the average price of major raw materials such as molasses,
cassava and liquid ammonia had reached record high. The
increase in the selling price of the Group’s products could
not fully cover the rising costs, hence gross profit shrank
2.8% or US$1,632,000 from US$57,856,000 last year to
US$56,224,000. Net profit was US$5,937,000.

14 vedan International (Holdings) Limited /3 BIBS (#28R) R A H
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE WD

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Sales in Vietnam recorded a growth of 6.2%, affected by
the high inflation rate, high interest rate, depreciation of the
Vietnam Dong, slowing economic growth, and sluggish equity
and property markets and which combined to yield conservative
consumption in that country. Although the serious disaster
which hit Japan, the Group’s second largest market, in early
2011 had an adverse effect on Japan's economy, the long term
cordial cooperation between the Japanese customers and the
Group, together with the gradual recovery of the Japanese
economy, reconstruction after the disaster and increase in
consumer demand have helped create a revenue growth of
29.5% in Japan, greatly exceeding that of the Group overall.
In 2011, the economic expansion in the PRC slowed down
quarter by quarter as labour costs increased rapidly and both
industrial production and exports showed signs of contraction.
The Group’s Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise Co., Ltd
suspended production temporarily in the third quarter this
year to complement the Group's revised operating strategies.
Revenue from the PRC was US$46,779,000, a drop of 9.7%.
Within the ASEAN region, the Group achieved significant
revenue growth of 39.8% as a result of its efforts to expand its
sales channels. In terms of products, except for its GA line, all
products recorded double digit growth in revenue benefiting
from the increase in sales price and sales volume during the
year.

In the execution of the Group’s PRC strategies, the increase of
energy costs and prices of raw materials caused the Shandong
Vedan Snowflake Enterprise Co., Ltd suspended production
temporarily since the third quarter in 2011. The management
has also planned to expand its related business such as
the starch and fertiliser segments and undertake efforts to
cooperate with Vietnam Vedan to expand its reach to overseas
markets. The Group hopes these initiatives can help enhance
the efficiency of Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise Co.,
Ltd.

With the rapid economic growth in Shanghai, Shanghai
Vedan’s plant located in the Songjiang district of Shanghai
has become an emerging development zone. As recently
enacted legislation and zoning restrictions resulting from
urban development of the region have rendered the district no
longer suitable for production. At the same time, the Group's
strategy for Shanghai operations is to focus on supporting
market expansion, sales network establishment and expansion
of markets in the cities of Shanghai and Jiangsu as well as
Zhejiang provinces. Therefore, the Group plans to integrate the
packaging production lines at Shanghai with its Xiamen plant
for lowering production cost. The Group has sold the assets
during the year and built smaller facilities in the surrounding
area to more effectively utilise its assets.

EBHRE (]\)
EMSEE T BEAXERBE =5
ERWEREME COERRRE K’
TEEMSEX EBELOEBRST  WE
HEAUWIEKRE6E 2%  MEBE - AHE
AR @ 3 R K F I E B E KB BB
i AREMEFEEEEBREARL
GE AARKERKEZEEME SEH
SHE T KGN A A [ B A & AR &
295% mREBEREBERKKR - —F——
FHRELENRIERBEEREZNE T H
e R ARRIER TELEERKHOE
HATREBALERKEEE SFF=-F5H
FEILERSEEHEAAEREE 2
R b [ 2 WO 9.7 % £46,779,0003%
Too REBMR S FLFK R M ERR B
FEEEGARBET ZitEERKE
39.8% cfEEMAE BT ARKMER H
NEERSEEEM HESWN - ApE
mERBEEBEMNH TR K-

FE AP B AR SRS 7 T A RAL A LU R Y
KA SR LR A EE B

B RERAR AR
HERNLERRE E_Z2——FF=F
BEREFLIEE RAKEEECHAEER
HEEMEB BN KRR L 8ERE
HMAERMA BRGNS BB RS
W SRR P ETEH) R

BEE LEMMKERERK LR IRTE
M EBRABMEK A ENERRE &
RELHBTERNRECBRTERLEE
X ARKIFNRE LERARAE
SBIER TS IRRE HEBBROEYL R
MR g R R E A M E W5 Bibst
ENREEREEREEMIRES  UH
BRELEXRES HARAREH LEEED
T REEMISBEZR)HE EEE
BEHBAA -

Annual Report 2011 F

15



Management Discussion and Analysis

EERENWED

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

The year 2011 was a challenging year for the Group's
operations. Not only has the price of agricultural products used
in production such as cassava and molasses increased during
the year. The price of other major raw materials such as liquid
ammonia and industrial salt has also risen by over 30% on
average. This plus the rise in energy prices and wages have led
to a surge in production cost and, in turn, adversely affected
profits. In light of this situation, the Group overcame these
challenges by adopting flexible production means, improving
efficiencies in energy and production as well as increasing sales
price to cover costs. Looking ahead, although the price of
energy should continue to rise, the price increases of some of
the raw materials are expected to end or even decline, which
will benefit the Group’s development in the coming year.

BUSINESS ANALYSIS
(1) Sales Analysis by Market

KHHRE(W|)
BB _T——FIEBMEYEE LRIRH
BO—F TEEIZEAREENRE
mERBIMAE EE LR HEER
HRE TXEHEFHRIEBRB30% B0
FRERB A B RIR - ATAKA LA ERK
EERAIE N AmMEN T -5 R kit -
SEBERLE ReERREERE I
R R AT E B - F AL e AR IR &
REN—F RERR-FHRALRER
EREEEATE B0 R ER
BEEEFLEER EEETHRZER HX
T —FHERSHPTIELS

BERSWH
(1) WHEEDN

Unit: US$'000 B FETT
2011 2010 Difference

Amount % Amount % Difference %

Area it & kx| % | % =5 %

Vietnam il 180,624 47.2 170,003 50.6 10,621 6.2

The PRC L 46,779 12.2 51,790 15.4 (5,011) 9.7)

Japan AR 86,039 22.5 66,429 19.8 19,610 29.5
ASEAN memeber HEKE

countries 36,310 9.5 25,975 7.7 10,335 39.8

Other regions Hi i & 33,148 8.6 21,910 6.5 11,238 51.3

Total Bt 382,900 100.0 336,107 100.0 46,793 13.9

(1) Vietnam

The Group’'s revenue from Vietnam was
approximately US$180,624,000 in 2011, a
growth of 6.2% or US$10,621,000 from about
US$170,003,000 in 2010. The growth was mainly
contributed by the improved performances in MSG,
fertilisers and native starch. The growth rate in this
market, however, was still lower than that of other
regions, hence revenue from Vietnam accounted for
47.2% of the total revenue, down from 50.6% in
the same period last year. The fact that the growth
was relatively low was mainly due to the decreased
spending power of consumers caused by high
inflation rate and the significant depreciation of the
Vietnam Dong.
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2. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued) Z BESW(E)
(1) Sales Analysis by Market (continued) (1) WEHEHEI W (&)
(2) Japan (=) HZAE

The Japanese economy has been hit hard by
the earthquake and tsunami in Japan during
March 2011. Fortunately, the Group's customers
and products were not adversely affected and
business actually steadily increased as the Group
maintained a close collaboration with its Japanese
partners. The revenue from this market surged by
US$19,610,000, the biggest jump in any single
geography, or about 29.5%, during the year.
The growth was mainly attributable to increased
revenue of MSG and modified starch. Revenue
from Japan accounted for an increasing share of
the Group's total revenue, from 18.9% in 2009,
to 19.8% in 2010 and up to 22.5% in 2011,
indicating the rising importance of that market to
the Group.

The PRC

In the PRC, an oligopoly has emerged in the MSG
industry resulting from increased production
capacity from other industry players, thus the Group
has adjusted its business strategy accordingly. Its
factory in Shandong has suspended production
temporarily since the third quarter and the sales of
GA have been reduced. During the year, revenue
from the PRC dropped by US$5,011,000 or about
9.7% to approximately US$46,779,000 from
US$51,790,000 in last year. Meanwhile, the revenue
from GA declined by US$3,767,000 or 31.5%.
During the year, the PRC accounted for 12.2% of
the Group's total revenue, down from 15.4% last
year.

ASEAN member countries

The Group was not able to provide a large supply
of products to this market because Vietnam Vedan
reduced its output due to the environmental
incident in 2009, thus its revenue from ASEAN
member countries has dropped. However, in the
last two years, this market have become the fastest
growing revenue contributor of the Group. When
compared to 2009, revenue from this market
surged by 156% to US$36,310,000, returning to
the 2008 level, and up by 39.8% or US$10,335,000
over 2010. Revenue from the ASEAN countries
accounted for 9.5% of the Group’s total revenue,
up from 7.7% of last year. This market showed
growth in sales of all products, including MSG. The
sales growth of in fertiliser was more than 100%.

AAMMEHEANR-Z——F
CAREBRENENERE
BB ARG AI=SBER &
ERTAREZKNEE  BHee
BriEk SEEAABHEE
ZEmAE BREN e 5EE
RESHEF BHEK BN
19,610,0003 7T 2% £929.5% -
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FreBAHERERMEEERS
WHEBRZEM A-F

NFEMISI%EE T — =
FHI9.8% K —_F— —FH
225% BrazminEHEEK

TIEIEEE M-

5 7

qﬂl%#ﬁﬁiﬂb B2 E
BEIG N - B MK EEET R
E@IFHNE M B RS
BELERE LEKE S
TEEREREFEE AAR
EmBLHEE BHAPER
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Lt % 451,790,000 Ju i 4
5,011,000 70K 499.7% °
EWRLVERT AEHKE
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EWLEREFI5.4%HB =
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2. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)

= BESW(R)

(1) Sales Analysis by Market (continued) (1) WEHEHEI W (E)
(5)  Other regions (7) EMms
Apart from the above-mentioned major markets, BT Lt EANTE KM
revenue from other regions rose by US$11,238,000 HHEIR & W4 /33,148,000
or 51.3% to approximately US$33,148,000 from EJT b EF 221,910,000
US$21,910,000 last year. Revenue from Taiwan E U MN51.3%8k & 5
and the EU countries grew by 19.5% and 113.8% 11,238,000k T EF - &
respectively. In Taiwan, GA recorded the largest rise BTG WE D R &
and modified starch also showed growth. In the EU 19.5%}113.8% é\/%z
countries zone, modified starch and MSG showed EEUUERREZAAAME &
substantial increases. MR B35 K o T BN R T 35 Al
=R MK B A KR K
Eo
(2) Sales Analysis by Product 2) EmBEEIN
Unit: US$'000 B FET
2011 2010 Difference
Amount % Amount % Difference %
Product ERER kx| % 8 % =58 %
MSG S 269,475 70.4 236,403 703 33,072 14.0
GA AAR 18,632 4.9 29,417 8.8 (10,785) (36.7)
Modified starch/ ZHRD/

Native starch RARS 46,290 12.1 34,423 10.2 11,867 345
Specialty chemicals FrESD 20,400 53 17,445 5.2 2,955 16.9
Fertiliser and feed &R 22,270 5.8 13,701 4.1 8,569 62.5
Seasoning FRA 2,972 0.8 2,434 0.7 538 22.1
Others Hi 2,861 0.7 2,284 0.7 577 253
Total it 382,900 100.0 336,107 100.0 46,793 13.9

(1) MSG and GA (—) BIGHA DB

MSG production of Vietnam Vedan has gradually
returned to normal since 2010. Revenue from MSG
rose by 14.0% or US$33,072,000 to approximately
US$269,475,000 against last year, and its share
of the Group’s total revenue slightly increased
to 70.4% from last year. Japan contributed the
largest growth in MSG products compared to other
regions. However, due to an adjustment in business
strategy, the revenue from GA decreased by
US$10,785,000 or 36.7% to US$18,632,000 and
its share of the Group’s total revenue dropped from
8.8% to 4.9%. MSG and GA together accounted
for 75.3% of the market, a reduction from 79.1%
in 2010.
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2. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)

(2)

Sales Analysis by Product

(2)  Modified starch/Native starch
During the year, output of modified starch and
native starch increased, while the average selling
price increased. As a result, revenue from this
segment surged by 34.5% or US$11,867,000 to
US$46,290,000 when compared to last year. Starch
products accounted for 12.1% of the Group's total
revenue, up from 10.2% last year and the second
largest revenue contributor after MSG.

(3)  Specialty chemicals and fertilisers and feed

During the year, the price of soda rose slightly
so as to reflect rising costs and market demand.
However, the sales volume of hydrochloric acid
saw a decrease due to reduced demand. As
a result, the revenue from specialty chemicals
amounted to approximately US$20,400,000, a
growth of US$2,955,000 or about 16.9% from
US$17,445,000 in the previous year. Specialty
chemicals have maintained a virtually constant
share of the total revenue around 5.2% to 5.3%
since 2008. As the price of fertilisers and feed
has significantly increased, the revenue grew
by US$13,701,000 or 62.5% to approximately
US$22,270,000 from US$13,701,000 in previous
year. The share of fertilisers and feed in the total
revenue increased from 4.1% to 5.8%. The revenue
from fertilisers and feed is expected to grow in
the future as the Group is planning to improve the
production process and enhance the added value.

3. MAIJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY OVERVIEW

(1)

Cassava/Cassava starch

While the price of cassava surged in 2010/2011, this
year the expected increase in available plantation area
globally, including the abundant cassava harvest in
Cambodia, led to a slight price decline in cassava during
the production season of 2011/2012. The harvest area
and output of cassava in the north and west of Thailand
in 2011/2012 were also higher than in 2010/2011.
During the year under review, the price stood at a high
level during the production season of 2010/2011 but
started to slip during September 2011. In general, owing
to the high price level in the first half of the year and
the peak procurement season in the first quarter, the
overall cassava price in 2011 was still higher than that of
the same period last year despite the price decline in the
second half of the year.

= BESW(R)

(2)

ERHES
(=) ZBHRY XABH
B EEBHRNEERD X
R ESIZIN RABYE
M FHEBHLEN F
HE WL XFHEMN34.5%
L 511,867,000 1 &
46,290,000% JT o & ) =
B2 KB H10.2%E mE
12.1%  BEEKBEMZIN
ME - RKER-
(=) #1EE a8 FAE £ #
HAREERERERAN L
REMISE R RIS ERA
HE BEBRATRRDHEE
HETH® WHRFLESR
W 58 4920,400,0003 7T
b B HA17,445,0003 7T 18 A0
2,955,000% 7T 3, 4916.9% °
BlERA-_STN\FEUK
BEUESEE B E W =4
BES2%E5.3% ° B &k
NHRE (B K IR IS 0 - e Uk
4922,270,0003% T ' Lt £ F
13,701,000 JT AKX &62.5% °
EUEBE WL E AR 1%
INZE5.8% AR RAEGAK & W78
e ERK EECES
WERE R MEHBER M

55

= XERH RRER

(1)

AE/KERH
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TBARE  EEE A S EEE ALY
- BERHERSESL At
—E—— /- ZFEFNEE
T 15 & 2 TN Bk T 2= B 4b 3 A0 7 EP
—T—— /- FHAREHEK
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——FEFLZ FIUNEBEHRN =T —
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3. MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY OVERVIEW = FERHE #iFEER (&)

(continued)

(2) Molasses 2 B=ZE
Due to persistently high global energy prices, molasses FERERERKARSTT B
has been converted into a source of producing alcohol. HE 2 M EBLE B AR IR AL - i A A
The price of molasses during the year was slightly higher ZERESNR_Z—ZFRE B
than that of 2010. However, as production has increased T2—— /ZE-—FEZFTHEFY
while the market demand has dropped in the production MERTISHE IR - A REREER
season of 2011/2012, the procurement price of molasses RIBEREERE-

is also likely to decrease.

(3) Energy (3) &R

The political turmoil in Middle East and Northern Africa, T —FFYRRELFERE
and the outbreak of civil war in Libya stopped oil supply Bl FItb e B = L8 A s - 0k
early last year disrupted oil exports while OPEC decided /5 B B AR A5 (OPEC) K 355 il 2k
not to increase the quota of its oil production, thus, the P B (50 A e L Bok - (B K%k - N
reduced supply has pushed up oil prices. In response to ERIRAD REERFEKIGM  sERME
the enormous global demand resulting from increasing BIFA S E MGk -THE £ES
global population energy consumption, the energy price NZFRBHIRAR - HEx - R hR
has remained at a high level. In Vietnam, the power AERE  FHEENEERRAA
utility Vietnam Electricity (EVN) increased the tariff twice BHER BE_T——FRARR
because of the rising prices of natural gas, coal and BHEBRNAIE LR - MPRE=T
fuel. The Group expected the prices of natural gas and —— FHRN EREBRESETT
electricity to climb further during 2012. As for the PRC, KA EBEENAEE -

the coal price stood at high level during 2011, impacting
on the Group’s production cost.

4. FINANCIAL REVIEW » M #OE
(1) Liquidity and Financial Resources 1) RBESMHBER

As at 31 December 2011, cash and bank deposits of HE-_ZT—F+_A=+—H%
the Group amounted to US$45,518,000, representing [® 3R & A 3R 17157 3K 545,518,0003
an increase of approximately 31.8%, or US$10,982,000 Tt ZZE—ZFFEIEH010,982,000
in the end of 2010. Short-term bank borrowings ELH31.8% - WEHERB
were US$28,127,000, an increase of US$ 252,000, 28,127,000 7T # H1252,0003%
while middle-to-long-term bank borrowings totaled 7T & B8 5K 89,946,000 7T
US$9,946,000, a decrease of US$5,313,000. Bank 45,313,000 7T fERAETR
borrowings were mainly denominated in US dollars. The T REMPRIEREERBT3.9%
proportions of short-term and middle-to-long-term bank th26.1%

borrowings were 73.9% and 26.1%.

Trade receivables dropped by US$7,614,000, or JiE Y2 IR 3K &32,714,000E 7T - /i 4
approximately 18.9%, to US$32,714,000, and they 7,614,000 7T - 4918.9% - J& YT iR
were mostly within 30 days. Inventories totaled REZRAIOCRHAFELER
US$95,338,000. The inventory figure increased by 95,338,0003 7T * 4 112,145,000
US$12,145,000 (around 14.6%) because the material ET(14.6%) - FEEM BT
costs have recorded sharp increases. Another attributable [REHERRIRE ERREAN - BINEZE
factor was the Group's flexible production strategy SRAEMEENEESN LA
of increasing volume of finished goods in response to FEHSHEREEENZEET G
seasonal material supply. HoKmFE-
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4.

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

(1) Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)
The gearing ratio (total borrowings to total capital
ratio) was 12.3% for the year under review, which
was lower than the 13.9% in 2010. Net gearing ratio
(total borrowings less cash and deposits to total capital
ratio) was -2.4%, which was improved from 2.8% of
the previous year, because the Group received the sales
proceeds from the disposal of its assets in Shanghai at
the end of the year. Current ratio increased from 2.3
last year to 2.6, because of increasing current assets and
decreasing current liabilities.

(2) Capital Expenditure
During the year under review, capital expenditure
amounted to approximately US$10,719,000,
US$7,716,000 less than US$18,435,000 of 2010.

EXCHANGE RATE

To reduce the trade deficit and the discrepancy between the
exchange rate in the black market and the official market
rate, on 11 February 2011, the Central Bank in Vietnam
announced the depreciation of the Vietnam Dong by 9.3% and
tightening the intraday fluctuation within 1%. The Vietnamese
Government also announced a number of new monetary
control policies, which include a limit on the use of foreign
money in daily commercial activities within Vietnam, increasing
the interest rates of deposits and loans in Vietnam Dong,
imposing a limit on the interest rate of deposits and loans in
US dollars, issuing an order to sell foreign exchange deposits
and revenue of state-owned enterprises to banks exclusively, as
well as prohibiting gold and jewellery shops to conduct foreign
exchange transactions. Under the more restrictive monetary
regime, the exchange rate of the Vietnam Dong to the US
dollar began to stablise in 2011. Compared to the official
exchange rate of US$1 to 18,932 Dong at the end of 2010 and
US$1 to 20,828 Dong at the end of 2011, the local currency
depreciated by 10.01%, mainly in the first half of the year but
only by 1% in the second half of the year. Although revenue
denominated in Vietnam Dong accounted for nearly half of
Group's total revenue, the Group has foreseen the depreciation
in the beginning of year and implemented the appropriate
procedures.

DIVIDEND

Basic earnings per share for the year was 0.52 US cents. The
Board decided to distribute a dividend of 0.311 US cents per
share, representing a dividend ratio of 60%.

’

b
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7. PROSPECTS

Looking into 2012, inflation in Vietnam is expected to improve,
and the interest rates and the exchange rate of the Vietnam
Dong to the US Dollar should also stablise. Though the prices
of natural gas and electricity are still under pressure and are
likely to continuously rise, carbohydrates may level off or be less
expensive than in the previous year, which would facilitate the
Group's cost control efforts. Looking ahead, the Group is set to
strengthen its fundamentals, leverage the strengths and work
to overcome the weaker aspects, consolidate our resources
for optimal deployment and focus on vertical expansion as
described below.

- On top of bolstering the sales network and branding of
its MSG operation, the Group will strive to strengthen
the marketing of seasoning products and super seasoning
products. The Group expects to launch beverage products
in Vietnam market through its existing MSG sales network
during the year, to create a new income source.

- To further develop the Group's carbohydrates-related
business, the factory in Vietnam will start producing
amylase and providing it to food and beverages related
industries.

- The fertiliser and feed business segment has recorded
substantial growth in recent years. The Group will strive
to further boost the sales volume and develop new value-
added products in the future.

- The Group will consolidate its starch operations in
Vietnam and the PRC by evaluating sources of material
supply, producing more competitive products, improving
customer service, and ultimately enlarging its market
share in the PRC.
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PROSPECTS (continued)

Resources integration will be continuously carried out in
the PRC, facilitated with concentrated production base,
lowered cost, enhanced marketing efforts, introduction of
new products, establishment of sales channels and brand
value creation.

Commence a project to improve organisational and
procedural capabilities led by team members with the
requisite management ability who understand the
mindset and abilities of our staff

Continue implementing energy-saving initiatives. The
rising cost of energy has presented our biggest challenge.
The Group has engaged the services of an external
consultant at the beginning of last year. Measures
undertaken have started to deliver improvement. This
year, the Group will continue with its efforts.

An ERP system will be implemented at the Vietnam plant
at early 2012. In addition to facilitating the creation of
and adherence to financial budgets and providing a real-
time analysis of operational data, all units would be able
to access information on this platform in a timely and
precise manner, react immediately to changes and thus
enhance overall operational efficiency.

Despite of the uncertainties foreseen in the year of 2012, and
ever changing operating environment, the Group will continue
to drive business growth at full strength by adopting prudent
business strategies and solid management, continuous new
product development and strengthening marketing effort and
sales channels. The management is cautiously optimistic about
the outcome that the Group will deliver in the year of 2012.
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At the heart of Vedan International’s

business success is a group of core products
with widespread applications and strong
brand recognition, one of the Group’s most
important and well-guarded assets. Its
renowned “Vedan” brand MSG, for example,
is considered essential throughout the food
processing industries across Asia for its role
in enhancing the flavours of a range of
foodstuffs, and enjoys a huge and constantly
growing market throughout Vietnam, the
PRC, ASEAN countries, Japan and the United
States.
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Profile of Directors

EE/EMT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, 69, our Chairman. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung
graduated from Taichung Min Der Commercial Vocational High
School. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung has approximately 49 years’ working
experience in the MSG industry and is one of the founders of the
Taiwan Vedan Group. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is responsible for
formulating our overall corporate strategy. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is
also a director of Vietnam Vedan and a director of Taiwan Vedan.

Mr. YANG, Cheng, 57, an executive Director. Mr. YANG, Cheng had
approximately 36 years’ working experience in the MSG industry.
Mr. YANG, Cheng is responsible for formulating our business
development strategy. Mr. YANG, Cheng is also a director of Vietnam
Vedan and Taiwan Vedan. Mr. YANG, Cheng is also a member of
Taiwan MSG Manufacturing Association. Mr. Yang holds an EMBA
Degree from Xiamen University in China in 2004.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang, 54, the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang obtained a master degree in
agricultural chemistry in 1986 from Meiji University, Japan. Mr. YANG,
Kun-Hsiang has 25 years’ working experience in the MSG industry
and has been involved in the development of the business operations
of Vietnam Vedan since 1991. During the last 20 years, Mr. YANG,
Kun-Hsiang was involved in the development and management of
Vietnam Vedan. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang is responsible for overseeing
Group's operations and strategic management.

Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen, 48, an executive Director and the director of
Vietnam Vedan. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen has approximately 15 years'
working experience in the MSG industry. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen is
responsible for coordinating our purchase activities. Mr. YANG, Chen-
Wen obtained a bachelor degree in mechanics in 1993 from Waseda
University, Japan.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, aged 52, was appointed as the executive
Director on 8 March 2012. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou had approximately
30 years’ working experience in the food, beverage and consumer
products industry. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is a director and a vice
president of Taiwan Vedan and is also a director of Vietnam Vedan,
Shanghai Vedan, Xiamen Mao Tai. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou also holds
directorship in Ve Wong Corporation (a company listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation) since 28 June 2006.
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Profile of Directors

EE/ET

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, 58, a non-executive Director and
Chairman of Shanghai Vedan and Xiamen Maotai. Mr. HUANG is a
director of Vietnam Vedan and a vice president of Taiwan Vedan. Mr.
HUANG graduated from the department of accounting and statistics
of the National Taichung Commercial College, Taiwan in 1974. Mr.
HUANG has approximately 34 years’ experience in administration and
finance.

Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng, 51, a non-executive Director. Mr. Chou is
the Supervisor of Vedan Enterprise Corporation. Mr. Chou was the
director and legal consultant of Wincome Technologies Company
Limited and he has over 19 years of experience in the legal industry.
Mr. Chou obtained his Bachelor of Law degree from Soochow
University, Master of Law degree from East China University and
Doctorate of Law degree from Peking University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, 50, an independent non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. CHAO obtained a
bachelor degree in law in 1984 and a master degree in law from
Soochow University, Taiwan in 1986 and a master degree in law
from the University of Houston in 1992. Mr. CHAO is an executive
partner of Jurist Law Offices, a law firm in Taiwan. Mr. CHAO has
approximately 19 years’ experience in his practice.

Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, 51, is an Independent Non-executive Director
and member of the Audit Committee of the Group. Mr. Ko has been
the executive partner of Weyong International & Co., Certified Public
Accountants in Taiwan since 2000. He graduated with a Bachelor of
Business Degree from Feng Chia University, Taiwan, and subsequently
obtained a Master of Science Degree in Accounting from the
University of Delaware, USA.

Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray, 52, is an independent non-executive director
and a member of the Audit Committee of the Group. Mr. Chen,
holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from the Eastern
lllinois State University, and a Bachelor Degree from the National
Taiwan University. Mr. Chen is presently the Managing Director of
ImEEKHERD AR 2 (Ray Wing Research and Investment
Corporation). He has more than 24 years of experience in securities
business in Taiwan and was the Vice Chairman and General Manager
of Yuanta Core Pacific Capital Management Corp. (ST AEH I E
MR AR A7), the Chairman of Concord Securities Investment &
Consulting Corp. (EMFHIZEBER RN AR A ) and the Senior
Vice President of Concord Securities Corp. (EMBEHFBRMNBERAR) .
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Profile of Senior Executives
SREEEBN

SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Mr. HSIEH, Jau-Hwang, 62, our Chief Financial Officer and vice
president of Vietnam Vedan. Mr. HSIEH graduated from the National
Cheng Kung University, major in accounting and finance. Mr. HSIEH
is responsible for the finance functions of the Group. Mr. HSIEH
has approximately 33 years of finance management and banking
experience. Mr. HSIEH worked for several financial institutions in
Taiwan and Vietnam including International Bank of Singapore and
ABN AMRO Bank. Mr. HSIEH was also a general manager of ChinFon
Bank, Ho Chi Minh City Branch. Prior to joining us, Mr. HSIEH worked
as the President in Gia Hen International Co., Ltd.

Mr. LIAO, Ruei-Hsing, 52, is the General Manager in charge of
the Group’s China operations. Mr. Liao holds a Master Degree in
Business Administration from Taiwan Cheng-Chi University. In the
past 21 years, he had held different senior executive positions in sales
and management in various multinational companies such as Coca-
Cola, Pepsi-Cola, Sara Lee and Bestfoods in Taiwan, the PRC, and the
Philippines.

Mr. LIN, Yu, 53, Vice President of Shanghai Vedan Enterprise, is
responsible for sales and marketing planning. A graduate of Taipei
Jianguo Senior High School, Mr. Lin joined Taiwan Vedan in 1989
first as a sales executive, and then was promoted to sales manager.
He started with Shanghai Vedan Foods in 1994, and made it to the
position of Vice President in Sales in June 2004. Mr. Lin has over 25
years of sales management experience in the food industry.

Mr. YANG, Chang-Keng, 55, president of Shandong Vedan
Snowflake Enterprise Co., Ltd. Mr. YANG graduated from Taichung
Commercial College and is responsible for the overall administration
and operation of Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise Co., Ltd.
He has had 18 years of work experience in the MSG and food
additive. Before joining the Group, Mr. YANG, Chang-Keng served
as the manager of the product development department in Tah Hsin
Industrial Corporation and San- Sun Hat & Caps Co., Ltd.

Mr. LO, Chi Man, 50, the Company Secretary of the Company
(up to 31 March 2012). He is responsible for the Group’s company
secretarial and listing compliance matters. Mr. Lo is a practising
certified public accountant in Hong Kong, holds a degree of Bachelor
of Laws in the Peking University, the PRC and is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo has over 28
years' experience in finance, accounting and company secretarial
practice.

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella, 36, will be appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company with effect from 1 April 2012. Ms Wong
is currently a manager of the corporate services division of Tricor
Services Limited (“Tricor”). Prior to joining Tricor, Ms. Wong worked
for Ernst & Young and Tengis Limited in Hong Kong. Ms. Wong is a
chartered secretary and an associate member of both The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Wong has over 10 years’ of
experience.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Group commits to maintaining and ensuring a high level of
corporate governance standards and continuously reviews and
improves our corporate governance and internal controls practices.
Set out below are the principles of corporate governance as adopted
by the Company during the reporting year.

DISTINCTIVE ROLE OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO")

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the Board
of Directors in establishing and monitoring the implementation of
strategies and plans to create values for shareholders.

The CEO is responsible for managing the operation of the Group's
businesses, proposing strategies to the Board and the effective
implementation of the strategies and policies adopted by the Board.

THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2011, there were nine members on the Board,
which are the Chairman, the CEO, two other Executive Directors,
two Non- Executive Directors (“NED") and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors (“INEDs").

The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments. The
Board considered that each of the INEDs brings his’/her own relevant
expertise to the Board and its deliberations.

None of the INEDs has any business or financial interests with the
Group nor has any relationship with other directors and confirmed
their independence to the Group.

The Board met regularly during the year and on ad hoc basis as
required by business needs. The Board's primary purpose is to set and
review the overall strategic development of the Group and to oversee
the achievement of the plans to enhance shareholders’ value. Daily
operational decisions are delegated to the Executive Directors. The
Board met four times during the year and the Directors’ attendance
is shown in the table on page 32. The NED and INEDs may take
independent professional advice at the Company's expense in
carrying out their functions.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Group has established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference as suggested under the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules and adopted
with reference to “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The Audit Committee comprises Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO,
Jim-Chen and Mr. Chan, Joen-Ray, all independent non-executive
directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Chao, Pei-
Hong. Each member brings to the Committee his valuable experience
in reviewing financial statements and evaluating significant control
and financial issues of the Group who among themselves posses
a wealth of management experience in the accounting profession,
commercial and legal sectors. During the year, the Audit Committee
met 2 times.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:—

(i)  to review the half-year and annual financial statements before
they are submitted to the Board for approval;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on, the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors, and
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors, and any questions of resignation or dismissal
of that auditors;

(iii) to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

(iv) to review the Company’s financial controls, internal controls

and risk management systems;

(v)  to review the Group’'s financial and accounting policies and
practice;

(vi) to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
function; and

(vii) to review the terms and conditions of connected transactions of
the Group.

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2011 prior to recommending them
to the Board for approval.

30  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Tk /3EIBE ({258) AR A H

ERERTE

RABERYBEZEZEE  WIRRE
MIsr14mmE M EE R T R
BRI AE HED F%@i% BRBUEETR
SIINERETEBE - FRZEENERES
SIERTEBHFREE  WEEEE KRB
TE-BREEENERABERLE - BUK
BERZECEMEEENLR ExMBMER
p¥1$$’§l§jﬂ %H&ﬁﬁ*$ﬂ BEHRE
HEE BANEERAMEEENERELR -F
N BREESRITMAEH -

B ET R Al
R AR

Il

@m@ﬁm@

ERZBEENIEBREWT:

(i) HEFFREFEFBHRLRE
EMAR®RK:

EEFGHAER

(i MEE EMEZELBRZBOMEESS
RS AN E REE
TERRR - A R SR IR AR (AT B B % A% B A B 1R Bk
i B2 i 5 R

(i) REEAER BHRERZBEOE L
REBE  URZBREFOMA

(iv) BEADE WM BEE
T R

AR EE 1 K

(v) BEAEENMEERSBEREBED

(vi) BRI RERNAEXBENTE K

(vii) ZBIA KB BER 5 H R R

ERRERERXAEEBEE_T——F+=
A=t BLFENUBRRTESSHAEAN
EEHNEE®REK-



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee in January
2006. Its terms of reference are summarised as follows:

(i) To make recommendations with respect to the remuneration
of the Executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company for approval by the Board,;

(i) To review the remuneration package and recommend salaries,
bonuses, including the incentive awards for Directors and the
senior management; and

(iii)  To administer and make determinations with regard to the
Company's share option scheme.

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr.
CHAO Pei-Hong, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, all independent non-executive
directors, and Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, non-executive director. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. KO, Jim-Chen.

The remuneration committee annually sets out its recommendation
on the remuneration package of the Executive Directors. For the
financial year ended 31 December 2011, the remuneration committee
has reviewed and recommended to the Board the salaries and
bonuses of the Executive Directors and the senior management.

Details of the amount of Directors emoluments are set out in Note 30
to the accounts and details of the 2003 Share Option Scheme are set
out in the Report of Director.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee in April 2008
to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
reappointment of Directors, structure, size and composition of the
Board to ensure fair and transparent procedures for the appointment
and reappointment of Directors to the Board. There being no
meetings held by the nomination committee during the year.

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung,
executive director, Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen and
Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, all independent non-executive directors. The
chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung.

FHER®
ARBAN-ZZFERNF-ARUFTNER S 2R
REFE ML T

(i) BMEARFATEERSREIEAB Z
REHEBER USRKEZGHE:

(i) BHREELEREBABZFHHAES X
PEE EA (BRERE) REER:

(i) BEEREEAQNRZBBRES -

FHZEEXNBREMBBLERTESTME
AL BEEELE REWEEMIFNTES
BERRTE -FHEZREENEREAMERELE-

FHEZEeBFREAHATESHHIESZ
BE-NEE_T——FT-_A=+—RHLHK
FE FHZESCEANTEERERERE
ZEHBRIEA TREESRHER -

EEMeRBE2HBARKANME-M-F
ToFRREFECHBEREFTERE -

REZE®

ARBAR-_ZEZNFOARIREELZES BE
EREFZEEST EFERE  ABRRAKA
EEeRIER UBREFEEFZZERE
HEERFRAFRAZAR FRRELRZEEL

Py
mEBITEE-

REZEGKERENTESHREBELE -FE
BIFRITERHIBRAE MREEERRD
WAL -REZBENTIRABRMELRE -

Annual Report 2011 F

31



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards
on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary
actions to ensure the compliance with the provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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AEERBESERRBRIELEE KT MES
598 ) BREUFT 7 - DA T IR 18 ST B X2 PR AP
MR ER B AR ST AR

MEETINGS ATTENDANCE EMHFCs
Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee
Exg EREES FMZEES
Number of Meetings BRRE (4) (2) (1)
Executive directors BTES
Yang, Tou-Hsiung (Chairman) SR (FE) 4 N/AT3E 1
Yang, Cheng 5 I1E 3 N/ATiE N/ATE
Yang, Kun-Hsiang (CEO) T IRRE (7T AR 4 2 N/AAS 4 F
Yang, Chen-Wen 15 R 4 N/AT i F N/AZiE
Non-executive director FHITES
Huang, Ching-Jung B 4 2 N/AS 38
Chou, Szu-cheng I5kEE 4 N/AZ 3 N/AZ 3 FA
Independent non-executive directors BIYFHTESE
Chao, Pei-Hong iR N 4 2 1
Ko, Jim-Chen Tl a 4 2 1
Chan, Joen-Ray Bk 83 4 2 1
INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION |

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF THE LISTING RULES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all
the code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) for
the year 2011.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company had adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code for dealing in securities of the
Company by the directors (the “Code”). Having made specific
enquiry, the Company confirmed that all directors have complied with
the required standard as set out in the Code.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor. During the year under
review, the Group is required to pay an aggregate of approximately
US$350,000 to the external auditor for their services including audit
and non-audit services.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors of the Company had acknowledged their
responsibilities for preparing the Company’s accounts for the year
ended 31 December 2011.
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Report of Directors

EEERE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) present their report and
the audited accounts for the year ended 31 December, 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the production of fermentation-based
amino acids, food additive products and cassava starch based
industrial products. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in Note 9 to the accounts.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these
activities during the year under review.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December, 2011 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 51.

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of 0.311 US
cents per share, totalling US$4,740,000 (2010: US$3,670,000) for
the year ended 31 December, 2011. Subject to shareholders’ approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the
final dividend will be paid in cash on or about 15 June 2012 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 1 June 2012.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 14 to the accounts.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December, 2011, the Company’s share premium reserve of
approximately US$194,098,000 (subject to the Cayman Companies
Law and the articles of association of the Company) and retained
earnings of approximately US$17,139,000 were available for
distribution to the Company's shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December, 2011, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's shares.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 15 to the accounts.

34 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited T3 EIBE (258) R A F

ARAREE([EFENHERBE_ZT—F
T_A=Z+ - BLEFENEFEREREEX
8-

FEERH
KRB RIREZERAR ENBAREEREL
BEXMEEQERER REMEEAZER
MIXER EMBRRIEXEBNFBHIN
AR B BIEE9 ©

HZEFEBREBEFELEEREE -

KBRS
AEERHE_T——F+t_A=+—HLEE
WEBHNESIENGEA KRR

EEegREREE—_E——F+t_-_A=+—8
IFFE R B E/0.311310 - 4 $£4,740,000
EL(=ZZ—T4:3,670,000%E7T) » FRER
RAREEREEFARS FibEER  REKEHE
R-ZE——FEXA+ABHSMEBEARS AL
NFR-ZZE——F XA —BRWAQARBRRA
feopg s -

B &
ARBRAESHOHBHNEKE 14 -

LIR30

AARR - E——F+_A=+—BEBRHDH
BREME#1194,098,000% 7T (IRIEFSEHE AR
ERANANRABERBAUGTE) MRERFL
17,139,000E ;e Al 7k F AR B ER o

WE - HERREES
ARFRAEANBAARBE T ——F 1=
A=T—ALFENBEBE LEXEEAR
AR -

% i
REBREARTRAFENEELSDHEHNER
BIaE15 ©



Report of Directors

EEERE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in Note 7 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its goods and
services from its five largest suppliers and sold less than 30% of its
goods and services to its five largest customers.

At no time during the year, did a director, an associate of a director
or any shareholder of the Company, which to the knowledge of
the directors own more than 5% of the Company's issued share
capital, have an interest in the share capital of any of the five largest
customers or suppliers of the Company.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Yang, Tou-Hsiung

Yang, Cheng

Yang, Kun-Hsiang

Yang, Chen-Wen

Yang, Kun-Chou (appointed on 8 March 2012)

Non-executive Directors
Huang, Ching-Jung
Chou, Szu-Cheng

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chao, Pei-Hong

Ko, Jim-Chen

Chen, Joen-Ray

According to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Mr. Yang, Cheng, and Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. Mr. Yang Kun-Chou, being a director appointed by the
Board of Directors on 8 March 2012, will be subject to re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All such Directors being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 26 to 28.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EERER HRABROREEECEER

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES HKE

(@) As at 31 December, 2011, the interests and short positions (a) W-Z——F+-_A=+—8B AQ A&
of each Director and chief executive of the Company in the EERERTRABERARARHEEM
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company HEEE (TEREFRBERD ([FFH
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of NMERE RG] ) EXVED) 2 Bt - ABRARR 15
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), MEREFET EBQRIEFES RHE KA
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and EXVENFETRFSD BBEMNEEARFRE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) BHMEZXZMBR AR ([HBRM]) 2
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including mRKE (BEREESRBEKIIEH
interests and short positions which the Directors were taken or BXESHERAIERAER 2 B K
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were 2) k() iRIEFEH K HEEHI 352162
required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in BB AZMGRT 2 B Az s &
the register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant e H(OBRBEEHEXSFAAR QA
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of FHEEMMBA(TEMmBAUD A&z EH
Listed Companies contained in the Rules Governing the Listing NEEBETEF R G ZEETRIANEG
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited RABINRBIZEREABRIT

("Listing Rules”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:—

Interests in shares

RIRAD Pz S

Percentage of
issued shares

Number of of the Company
Name ordinary shares HERATE BT
" E ZER™E R E DL
Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung 169,730,196 11.15%
15 BRI S (Note 1)
(KE=E1)
Mr. YANG, Cheng 169,730,196 11.15%
BIERAE (Note 2)
(K7E2)
Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung 200,000 0.01%
Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong 500,000 0.03%
I R S
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Notes:

1. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung’s interest in shares was held in the following
capacity:—
Capacity 54

B

1. BEHELENTI S MR RO R

Number of

ordinary shares
EEREE

Interest of company controlled by him

* Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung was entitled to exercise or control
the exercise of more than one-third of the voting power of
King International Limited (“King International”) and King
International is the holder of such 169,730,196 shares of the

Company.
2. Mr. YANG, Cheng's interest in shares was held in the following capacity:
Capacity 54

REFES 2 ARPRZER

169,730,196 *

* HHEELEERETERESNTRE
King International Limited ([King
International | ) B8 =5 2 —miRFE#E
ifiKing International /&% #£169,730,196
BRAEABRMD 2 FHEA

2. HBIELER TN EOIHFERNDER
Number of

ordinary shares
TEREE

Interest of company controlled by him

* Mr. YANG, Cheng was entitled to exercise or control the exercise
of more than one-third of the voting power of King International
and King International is the holder of such 169,730,196 shares
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

REFES 2 ARPRZER

169,730,196 *

* 5 IE % &£ B T s TR
King International Limited ([King
International ] ) BB =5 —MIR =R -
MKing International &&%#t169,730,196
BARABRD 2 HEA

BEXFIHEEN R ——F+_A=+—
B BEARAEERRRTRAERARAAK
HOEMBAEER (EEREHFRBERKRIIEXV
) 2RO AEERMDRERER  EHRER
REEQBERESRAEERNEXVHETRES
DEBHNG AR R KRB AT A MERSAR
(REREES RAEGANE BECEER AL
WRAERE 2B RKAR) () IRIEFS AT
BI&HIE3526BH AZ G2 B Rz E
AR SAR (OB BE ETRAIFTEZ ETA
REBRETEFRIMZESTAANE ARG
B pr 2 (R eSSk R o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 13 June, 2003, the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme were approved by shareholders under which the
Directors may, at their discretion, offer any employee (including
any executive director of the Company) of the Group, options
to subscribe for shares in the Company subject to the terms and
conditions stipulated in the two schemes.

Options to subscribe for 29,770,000 shares had been granted to the
Directors and employees of the Group on 13 June, 2003 under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. No further options can be, or have
been, granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme from 27 June,
2003, the date of listing of the shares on the Stock Exchange. As at
31 December 2011 and 2010, there was no share option outstanding
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme has been expired on 2008 and no further options could be
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2011, no option had been granted or exercised
under the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Mr. Yang, Cheng, Mr. Yang, Kun-
Hsiang and Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial period of three years.
Such service agreements may continue thereafter unless terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party
following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at any time
thereafter.

Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed period of three years commencing on 8 March
2012.

Each of Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung and Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for an initial term of
one year. Such service agreements may continue thereafter unless
terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by either party
following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at any time
thereafter.

Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years and both parties may upon or
before the expiration of the original term or any renewed term (as
the case may be) thereof, agree in writing to extend the term of the
service agreement for three year.

38  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Tk /3EIBE (25%) AR A F
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Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three year and both parties may upon or
before the expiration of the original term or any renewed term (as
the case may be) thereof, agree in writing to extend the term of the
service contract for three year.

Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three year and both parties may upon or
before the expiration of the original term or any renewed term (as
the case may be) thereof, agree in writing to extend the term of the
service contract for three year.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the service contracts detailed above, no director had a
material interest in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with Taiwan Vedan Enterprise Corporation
(“Taiwan Vedan”)

For the year ended 31 December, 2011, the Company entered into
the following transactions with its substantial shareholder, Taiwan
Vedan, a connected person of the Company, which constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules:

MBEEEEEARATLAH=ZF2REA
Ho MEFARRERRKETANEELRR (K
THEAME) ERTLERARNBAELERREAS
H=%-

REMALECEARRBITLAM=FZREA
#omETARRARERETAEELRR (R
FIERTE) ERAINER S ARBERRBE
H=4F-

EREBRBFAG LRER EFWEEAR
RAFUARAE—FATMERE OEEHER
SN BIR AT B 2 IRIB A4 -

EEMBACENER

B EXFTFP 2 RIBA KIS W EEEHEARE
BB ARRFARMT LMY RNEEE
BBEAZAENTHAEANER -

BEREXS

HAERALERODERATR ([AEKA] 2
X5

HE-_Z——F+_-_A=+—HLFE £A27
BHEFERREEEATSEKRTHET TR
S MZEXFHERBET EMHRAE14AT R
WMEAEREZRHBEAERS

Note US$'000
B 5 FET
A.  Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan A MBERAHEE®D 0) 1,313
B.  Technological support fee paid to B. A/ RS (ii) 2,734
Taiwan Vedan R RE
C.  Agency commission income received C. YWE&EKMKE (ii) 57
from Taiwan Vedan HeBA

Agency commission expense paid to
Taiwan Vedan

MEMX

AARKARRE

(iii) -
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(if)

40 vedan

The Group has been selling certain GA (acronym as “glutamic acid”),
MSG (acronym as “monosodium glutamate”) and cassava starch based
industrial products to Taiwan Vedan and its subsidiaries (other than
members of the Group) (“Taiwan Vedan Group”) for use in Taiwan.
On 23 December 2011, the Company and the Taiwan Vedan Group
entered into an agreement in respect of the sales of such products by
the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for a term of three years from 1
January 2012 to 31 December 2014 (“Taiwan Sales Agreement”). At the
relevant time, the Company estimated that the annual total aggregate
amount of sales of the products to the Taiwan Vedan Group will not
exceed the maximum cap of US$3,000,000 for each of the three
financial years ending 31 December 2014. The Directors believe that the
sale of goods to the Taiwan Vedan Group pursuant to the Taiwan Sales

Agreement will generate additional income to the Group.

US$1,313,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of sales
of the products by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$4,800,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 23 December 2008.

The Taiwan Vedan Group has been providing certain technological
support services to the Group. On 23 December 2011, the Company
and Taiwan Vedan entered into an agreement in respect of the provision
of such services by the Taiwan Vedan Group to the Group for a term of
three years from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2014 (“Technology
Support Agreement”). At the relevant time, the Company estimated
that the annual total aggregate amount of service fee payable pursuant
to the Technology Support Agreement will not exceed the maximum
cap of US$2,500,000 for each of the three financial years ending 31
December 2014. The Directors believe that the technology support
from Taiwan Vedan Group will benefit the Group’s future business
developments.

US$2,734,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of
service fee payable by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$3,000,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 24 December 2009.
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(iii)  Each of Taiwan Vedan and the Company has been acting as the sole
and exclusive agent of the other party to sell, distribute, supply and/
or provide the products that are produced or proposed to be produced
by the Group from time to time to the customers in Vietnam, ASEAN
countries and the PRC or in Taiwan (as the case may be). On 23
December 2011, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into an
agreement (“Agency Agreement”) in respect of such transactions for
a term of three years from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2014.
At the relevant time, the Company estimated that the annual total
aggregate amount of commission to be received by each of the Group
and the Taiwan Vedan Group will not exceed the maximum cap of
US$150,000 and US$80,000 for each of the three financial years ending
31 December 2014. The Directors believe that the Group will continue
to benefit from the transactions as the Group will receive additional
commission income, and, it will also continue to benefit from the
transactions in respect of additional sales to customers in Taiwan which
may not be satisfied by the production capacity of, or the available

products from, the Taiwan Vedan Group.

US$57,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of
commission received by the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2011, which has not exceeded the relevant
maximum cap of US$150,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 31 December 2008.

Transactions with Shandong Xue Hua Bio-chemical Co., Ltd.
(“Xue Hua")

On 22 December 2005, Ordino Investments Pte Ltd (“Ordino”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Xue Hua entered into
a joint venture contract to set up a joint venture company, Shandong
Vedan Snowflake Enterprise Co., Ltd. (“JV Company”) in the PRC.
Upon the establishment of the JV Company, the JV Company
becomes a 70% non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Xue Hua, which holds 30% of the equity interest in the JV Company,
becomes a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, Ordino and the JV
Company entered into the following transaction with Xue Hua, a
connected person of the Company which constituted continuing
connected transaction of the Company subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(i) AERSRARTDEBERAZ—FHZE—ER
R ATEHE D8 HER RRHHEAX
SEAESBEEERTULAMRE  RABRR
RABESEE(BTEAME) 2EFP -RE
——F+ZAZ+=8 AARKREERARZ
ERXGEIE ([REHZE]) BT —=F
—A—HEZZ—WNE+A=1T—HIE' A
=% - NEERE RARMEHANEE LA E
KASESEERTHRRzFERSLEETE
BBHZ-_T—NF+-_A=+—H1E =@
BRFEEF 2 f&m _ER150,000% 7T &% 80,000%
ToBERHEE AKBEBEETENZERS
TR AR E A EEEIMES YA - T E IR
HESXBENEBTIIHETAEEP 2ZE
X5 AEIKFTEE 2 ERL A RE R A M B SR
FEREBERTRERP -

RBE-_Z—F+_A=+—ALFREE"
RNEBUE 2 FEAE 4% /57,0007 WK
RBRARA-TTNF+_A=+—RH2ZA
EREMIKE 2 BB &S ER150,000% 7T °

HIREREYEIRGERLAR ([BE]) 2
x5

R_EERAF+_A=-+—8 KRAaA2EWE
‘A a]0rdino Investments Pte Ltd ([Ordino | ) &2
ERFUAEEHN TFPREKLEERAILR
KWNELEEXEERAB ([G8AF]) cKILAE
BNRE  BERRKARARIHEETIONERZZ
FE2EMBAT SHANFEEEQTE0%RK
R EEMBAUFEI4ATE  KARRA 2 RE
Ao

BE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—HILFE  0rdino
MABRBEARRZBEATSEET T
G MZERSHBENBET EMBREI14AE
MR AEREZFHEMRERS

Note RMB'000

[ihg=3 AREEF T

A. Purchase of certain raw materials A BERAIAEBEEESRT (i) 14,298
by the JV Company from Xue Hua R4
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(i) The JV Company has been purchasing certain raw materials (including
GA, steam, electricity, starch and sulfuric acid) from Xue Hua. On 23
December 2011,
an agreement in respect of the purchase of such raw materials by the

Ordino, Xue Hua and the JV Company entered into

JV Company from Xue Hua (“Raw Materials Purchase Agreement”) for
a term of three years from 28 December 2011 to 27 December 2014
(with the JV Company's right to renew for successive terms of three
years each until the end of the term of the JV Company subject to
compliance with the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules).
At the relevant time, the Company estimated that the annual total
aggregate amount of the raw materials to be purchased by the JV
Company from Xue Hua pursuant to the Raw Materials Purchase
Agreement will not exceed the maximum cap of RMB15,000,000
for each of the three financial years ending 27 December 2014. The
Directors are of the view that such transactions will provide cost benefits
to the Group for its GA and MSG manufacturing businesses.

RMB14,298,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of the
raw materials purchased by the JV Company from Xue Hua for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of RMB200,000,000 as disclosed in the previous

announcement dated 23 December 2008.

Confirmations

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions for the year ended
31 December 2011 have been reviewed by independent non-
executive Directors of the Company. The independent non-executive
Directors confirmed that the aforesaid connected transactions were
entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group on pages 39 to 42 of the annual report in
accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

So far as was known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December, 2011, other than the interests and
short positions of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
as disclosed above, the following persons had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO:

BrmRE
ARREBERARNKFASHE AL ERT
BERERTE ERAQRAZRLIARARREE
F oD o

FERREDIRBRHZRE

BEMEFRARARHTRAEMM R-F
——H+ZA=+—B BLXABREERHAK
RARBITBABNEE ARSI MTALR
ARBBMDIBEROTHBREZ S LEE
ERBIFEXVERFE2 K F350 & 2 R AR AR R AR
Bomgke  ZIIAARRRREZELFRAE
GOIZE336IGMIFEECMAERIKR

Percentage of
issued shares

Number of of the Company
Name Capacity ordinary shares HELARE
=x 54 ZERHE BITROBIL
Billion Power Limited (“Billion Power") Beneficial owner 460,237,609 30.22%
BEnEAA (Note 1)
(HEET)
Taiwan Vedan Interest held by its controlled 460,237,609 30.22%
BB T corporation
REZEHZ hEER
King International Limited Beneficial owner 169,730,196 11.15%
("King International”) oA A
Concord Worldwide Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
BERHAA
High Capital Investments Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
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Report of Directors

EEERE

Notes:

1. Billion Power is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Vedan. Taiwan
Vedan is therefore taken to be interested in these 460,237,609 shares
held by Billion Power.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors or chief
executives of the Company, as at 31 December 2011, no other
person (not being a Director or chief executives of the Company) had
any interests or short positions in shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Five Directors of the Company, namely, Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung,
Yang, Cheng, Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Yang, Chen-Wen and Yang,
Kun-chou were also directors of the Group's controlling shareholder,
Taiwan Vedan. In addition, Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Yang, Cheng,
Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Yang, Chen-Wen and Yang, Kun-Chou indirectly
held approximately 19.77 percent., 9.89 percent., 6.18 percent.,
8.24 percent, and 6.18%. interest in Taiwan Vedan, respectively and
they were therefore considered as having an interest in Taiwan Vedan
under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

The Taiwan Vedan Group is principally engaged in, inter alia, the
production of food additive products, including MSG products, and
beverages in Taiwan, which may compete with the Group’s business
operations in respect of the product portfolio of the Group (“Product
Portfolio™).
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Report of Directors

EEERE

Since Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiang and Yang, Cheng are both
responsible only for the overall strategic planning and the business
development of the Taiwan Vedan Group and the Group and the daily
operations of the Group are managed by Messrs. Yang, Kun-Hsiang
and Yang, Chen-Wen together with an independent management
team. In Taiwan Vedan, Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou is mainly responsible
for the sales of the products of the Company and products of other
companies which the Company acts as an agent within Taiwan.
In the Group, he provides guidance and assistance for selling the
Group's products the sales of in Vietnam and China markets. Taiwan
Vedan and the Group are operated by separate sales teams which are
independent of each other, while market segmentation shall comply
with the details of the territorial delineation agreement signed by
the Group and Taiwan Vedan. The Directors are of the view that
the management and the operational functions of the Group are
independent of and separate from those of other members of the
Taiwan Vedan Group.

For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the independent non-
executive Directors and the Audit Committee of the Company would
on a regular basis review the business and operational results of the
Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group’s business operations in
respect of the Product Portfolio is and continues to be run on the
basis that it is independent of, and at arm’s length from, that of
Taiwan Vedan.

AUDITOR

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board

Yang, Kun-Hsiang
Director and Chief Executive Officer
20 March 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B

=
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VEDAN INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vedan
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to 125, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2011, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 B R

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31 December 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2012
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 December 2011

—Z——%t-A=t—H

2011 2010
Note Us$‘000 Us$'000
B 7 FEx FET
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land use rights =+ s s AR 6 2,200 654
Property, plant and equipment Y REREE 7 157,547 174,013
Intangible assets EREE 8 13,953 15,049
Prepayment for property, plant and W WENEEZ
equipment TR RIA 27 200
Long-term loan and receivables REAE R R EWGRIE 329 -
Investment in an associate R—EEERAZ
& 10 1,008 1,230
Deferred income tax assets RIEMBHEE 18 42 =
Total non-current assets IARBEELE 175,106 191,146
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 11 95,338 83,193
Trade receivables FEWE Z R 12 32,714 40,328
Amount due from the non-controlling JIE W Bt /8 A R FEHE AR
interest of a subsidiary a2 T8 1,431 1,308
Prepayments and other receivables A FIE K& H At
JFE W R IR 11,219 7,950
Current income tax recoverable BN HR AT W [B] BT 15 A% 41 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEEY 13 45,518 34,536
186,261 167,315
Non-current assets held for sale BIEHEERBEE 6(ii) = 12,415
Total current assets REBEEHAE 186,261 179,730
Total assets EEH#E 361,367 370,876
EQUITY fEm
Equity attributable to owners of ARARER AE
the Company =
Share capital AR 14 15,228 15,228
Reserves i
— Proposed final dividend —EBEARHRE 15, 26 4,740 3,670
— Others —H M 15 251,870 245,647
271,838 264,545
Non-controlling interest FEIZERR E = (217) 1,631
Total equity EREE 271,621 266,176

The notes on pages 55 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 December 2011 —ZE——%+—-F=+—H
2011 2010
Note uUs$‘000 Us$'000
B 7 FTEx T
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities ERBEME
Bank borrowings RITEE 17 9,946 15,259
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSTREE 18 6,538 7,513
Long-term payable to a related party ENBEREALZ
R HIFRIA 34(d) - 2,074
Provision for long service payment RERB RS 1,277 1,179
Total non-current liabilities kARBEEREE 17,761 26,025
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables BB 5 BRI 16 23,817 26,030
Accruals and other payables FEHE R &k HAh
JE T FRIB 12,846 19,847
Due to related parties BN A REE AT I 34(d) 2,399 2,280
Bank borrowings RITIEE 17 22,813 23,596
Current portion of non-current bank SERFRITIEEZ
borrowings BN ERZB 15 17 5,314 4,279
Current income tax liabilities BNERFTS#E B & 4,796 2,643
Total current liabilities RBAEEE 71,985 78,675
Total liabilities =Rtk 89,746 104,700
Total equity and liabilities ERREEEE 361,367 370,876
Net current assets REBEEFRE 114,276 101,055
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERRBER 289,382 292,201

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on its behalf.

PBRREEEFTSEHM LA TIALTRRES

YANG, Tou-Hsiung YANG, Kun-Hsiang
R 3

Director Director

BEFE BEFE

The notes on pages 55 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

EEREX

As at 31 December 2011 —ZFE——F+—-HA=+—H
2011 2010
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
Bt 5 FEx F=T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Intangible assets mREE \ 8 3,828 5,037
Investments in subsidiaries RWBAR ZIKE 9 165,241 170,390
Long-term loan to a subsidiary HT—HKERRZ
 REE® 9 13,200 10,500
Investment in an associate R—HEBERRZ
wRE 10 1,230 1,230
Total non-current assets IARBEELE 183,499 187,157
Current assets REBEE
Due from subsidiaries NG ] 9 50,146 50,809
Prepayments and other receivables TR A K
H W RTE 2,262 1,737
Current income tax recoverable B EA A] 4y [B] T 15 75t 9 =
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREeEEY 13 723 1,151
Total current assets REEEAE 53,140 53,697
Total assets EEHE 236,639 240,854
EQUITY BE
Equity attributable to owners of ARBIEE ARG
the Company B
Share capital FEN 14 15,228 15,228
Reserves ]
— Proposed final dividend —EEARHRE 15, 26 4,740 3,670
— Others —HAf 15 206,497 207,032
Total equity Y L 226,465 225,930
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liability FRBEE
Long-term payable to a related party ERNEEEATZ
REAFRIA 34(d) = 2,074
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables EsrER K
B th & < 5K 1,925 1,282
Bank borrowings HRITEE 17 5,850 9,288
Due to a related party BB BEA LKA 34(d) 2,399 2,280
Total current liabilities BB EEE 10,174 12,850
Total liabilities BfEAE 10,174 14,924
Total equity and liabilities EaREELARH 236,639 240,854
Net current assets REEEFE 42,966 40,847
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBESE 226,465 228,004

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on its behalf.

HBRRCEEETSEMLH TIALTRRES -

YANG, Tou-Hsiung YANG, Kun-Hsiang
B o E

Director Director

EE BEF

The notes on pages 55 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
BHNESSE 125 B M RE oA iR & I T SR ) — BB 17 o
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Consolidated Income Statement

mE WX

Year ended 31 December 2011 HE=ZZT——F+-A=+—HIEFE

2011 2010
Note US$'000 Us$'000
B 7 FEx F=ET
Revenue g 2% 19 382,900 336,107
Cost of sales SHE B AR 21 (326,676) (278,251)
Gross profit EF 56,224 57,856
Other losses — net HhEE R 5 20 (311) (2,076)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HERELE
held for sale EmBEE W= 6(ii), 31 8,464 =
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS 21 (22,407) (16,393)
Administrative expenses THAEX 21 (29,648) (24,897)
Compensation to farmers EREE 22 - (11,807)
Operating profit LR T 12,322 2,683
Finance income B A 741 968
Finance costs B S (1,820) (1,696)
Finance costs — net PHEEH—FE 23 (1,079) (728)
Share of post-tax loss of an associate JE A& B & R RIBR B 12
E1E 10 (222) =
Profit before income tax B P 18 B4 Al %2 F 11,021 1,955
Income tax expense FrE i 24 (5.084) (4,582)
Profit/(loss) for the year EEERAN(FA) 25 5,937 (2,627)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: LT&AEEZR,
(E1|) :
Owners of the Company KRARHEE A 7,902 (1,480)
Non-controlling interest IR R A (1,965) (1,147)
5,937 (2,627)
Earnings/(losses) per share for profit/ A2QATEEAELEER
(loss) attributable to the owners of BA (ER) 2
the Company during the year SREF,(BE)
(expressed in US cents per share) (LBREMFITR)
Basic earnings/(losses) per share BREXERN
(&18) 27 0.52 (0.10)
Diluted earnings/(losses) per share SERBHEER A
(&18) 27 0.52 (0.10)
Dividends BE 26 4,740 3,670

The notes on pages 55 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEZERER

Year ended 31 December 2011 HE=ZZT——F+-A=+—HIEFE

2011 2010
Note Us$’000 US$'000
Bt 5 SPESTE Fx=T
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERHN(FHE) 5,937 (2,627)
Other comprehensive income Hah2mEKA
Currency translation differences PEH =58 15 3,178 1,992
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EEEZEBRAS
for the year (f58) 4 %8 9,115 (635)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) UTREFEGMEFEE
for the year attributable to: 2HEKRA (BE)
A
— Owners of the Company —ARNEHEB A 10,963 419
— Non-controlling interest —FEERER (1,848) (1,054)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) REFEZEKRA
for the year (B518) % 9,115 (635)

The notes on pages 55 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2011

E-T-—Ft-AS+-ALEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREE AR
Non-
Share Share Exchange Merger Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total interest equity
[ R EE ERfifE CXid 4 REEF @i FERER BRAR
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
T£5r FEL T£5 FET T£7 Txn Txn Txn
Balance at 1 January 2010 RZE2-Z5-A-Az&H 15,228 47,358 10,308 79,994 116,078 268,966 2,685 271,651
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - (1,480) (1,480) (1,147) (2,627)
Other comprehensive income Hit2ERA
Currency translation differences ERZE - - 1,899 - - 1,899 93 1,992
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2EHR A/ (F#E) B8 - - 1,899 - (1,480) 419 (1,054) (635)
Total transactions with owners BREAZARSH
Dividends paid relating to 2009 “EENERBZEMRE - - - - (4,840) (4,840) - (4,840)
Balance at 31 December 2010 R-B-BE+ZA=+-HZ
& 15,228 47,358 12,207 79,994 109,758 264,545 1,631 266,176
Balance at 1 January 2011 RZF——5-f—-Hz&H 15,228 47,358 12,207 79,994 109,758 264,545 1,631 266,176
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Profit(loss) for the year AEREH/ (BR) = = = = 7,902 7902 (1,965) 5,937
Other comprehensive income Hit2ERA
Currency translation differences ERER - - 3,061 - - 3,061 17 3,178
Total comprehensive income 2ARAEE - - 3,061 - 7,902 10,963 (1,848) 9,115
Total transactions with owners BEAACARSE
Dividends paid relating to 2010 “R-TFEBZEMARE - - - - (3,670) (3,670) - (3,670)
Balance at 31 December 2011 R=B--F+=f=1+-H2
&0 15,228 47,358 15,268 79,994 113,990 271,838 (217) 271,621

The notes on pages 55 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2011

E-T——F+-ASt-BLEE

2011 2010
Note Us$'000 us$'000
B 5 FTXEx F=T
Cash flows from operating activities REEBEEZ
HERE
Cash generated from operations XBELEZERS 31 16,179 21,960
Interest paid EATHE (913) (447)
Income taxes paid BT ER (3,989) (5,033)
Net cash generated from operating REEBEEZ
activities We 11,277 16,480
Cash flows from investing activities REZHEEZ
HERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEME - -BWE R
equipment R A 7 (10,719) (16,802)
Long-term prepayment of property, Y% WE R
plant and equipment Z REATES RUIE 173 903
Proceeds from sale of property, HEMZE BE KR
plant and equipment A 2 FT1S ROE 31 296 166
Proceeds from sale of non-current assets &R {EHE 2
held for sale ERBMBEE
ZFiSRIE 31 19,305 =
Purchases of intangible assets and BEERVEER
land use rights o b {5 R A ., 8 - (1,633)
Redemption of held-to-maturity BRFEEEESZ
financial assets MIBEE = 2,959
Investment in an associate REEE AR 21 E 10 - (1,230)
Interest received from held-to-maturity BERFHERIHRZ
financial assets WM& EZFE - 61
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEEBESE
investing activities (FTR)2IR&F58 9,055 (15,576)
Cash flows from financing activities METHEEZ
HERE
Dividends paid EfIRE 26 (3.670) (4,840)
Net change in current bank borrowings BNERERTT B &
2855 (783) 344
Proceeds from non-current bank FERNERSRITIE B
borrowings Fr iS5 3R18 - 20,169
Repayment of non-current bank & IERNEAR 1T
borrowings BE (4,278) (19,976)
Repayment of long-term payable BELERKIE
to Vedan Enterprise Corporation IR DB R A A
(“Taiwan Vedan") (r88Ka1) 2z
£ 5 & < OB (2,145) (2,145)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEFEAAZ
R FHE (10,876) (6,448)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRELZEEY
cash equivalents ®m ORd) B8 9,456 (5,544)
Cash and cash equivalents RENzReRES
at beginning of year ZEY 13 34,536 39,614
Exchange gains on cash and RekREEEBYZ
cash equivalents & 1,526 466
Cash and cash equivalents RERZREER
at end of year REZEEY 13 45,518 34,536

The notes on pages 55 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vedan International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) manufacture and sell
fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products and
cassava starch-based industrial products including modified
starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium Glutamate (“MSG"), soda,
acid and beverages. The products are sold to food distributors,
international trading companies, and manufacturers of food,
paper, textiles, and chemical products in Vietnam, other ASEAN
member countries, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
Japan, Taiwan, and several European countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Century
Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, George Town P.O. Box
2681 GT, Grand Cayman, British West Indies.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$"”), unless otherwise stated. These financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 20 March 2012.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basis and the principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 BREERTESHRFEE (/)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 wRBEE(E)
(a)  Revised standard adopted by the Group (a) AKNEFATIRAIAEANSSTER)

(b)

The following revised standard is mandatory for the
first time for the financial year beginning 1 January
2011.

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

The Group adopted the above revised standard
which impacts the disclosures of the consolidated
financial statements.

The following standards, interpretations and
amendments/revisions to standards are mandatory
for the first time for the financial year beginning 1
January 2011, but do not have significant financial
impact to the Group.
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements
Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues
(Amendment)

HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
International Financial
Reporting Standards

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time

Adopters

Amendment to
HKFRS 1

Amendment to
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(¢) The following new standards and amendments/ (c)
revisions to standards have been issued, but are
not mandatory for the financial year beginning 1
January 2011 and have not been early adopted.

REUEERTES

AR E (1)

21 mBEEE (F)

AT A RMEIL IR =
E——F - HHRAKRZTRK
FERS - BMERARAZ
MAERMRER ZAETA &
] °

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTFIBMH &
BMrzatHBEER
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements 1 July 2012
ER G ERE 1 (BFTAR) 20 WK HEK T+ H—H
HKAS 12 (Amendment) Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets 1 January 2012
R G ERE125% RIET IR - Y AR BA & B i

(BFTAR)

HKAS 19 (Amendment)

BBGTERFE195%
(BFTAR)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

BB LR F275%
(8&1257)

HKAS 28 (Revised)

BB TR F2855%
(#&1E37T)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

BB B REERE 15
(BFTA)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

B B s s R 75

(EETA)
HKFRS 9
BB B S A R WR
HKFRS 10
BN B REERE105
HKFRS 11
BRMBGHREEE115R
HKFRS 12
BB RS E A 125

Employee Benefits

‘E®RA

Separate Financial Statements

LR

Associates and Joint Ventures

X WNCIINE= RN

Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of
Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters
BRERB M RAR &SR &R AE 2 EE B E

Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets

BE-BEHBEE

Financial Instruments

ERIA

Consolidated Financial Statements
N e

Joint Arrangements

HREZHE

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

BEREMER 2R

1 January 2013
—T-=F—A—H

1 January 2013
—T—=%—H—H

1 January 2013

— 2 =F%—H—H
1 July 2011
—T——%+H—H
1 July 2011
—E——%+H—H

1 January 2015

—HFE—H—H
1 January 2013
—T—=%—H—H
1 January 2013
—T—=%—H—H
1 January 2013
—E—=f—H—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(¢) The following new standards and amendments/
revisions to standards have been issued, but are
not mandatory for the financial year beginning 1
January 2011 and have not been early adopted.
(continued)

RHEERFERHFEE (])

2.1 mEEE (&)
(c) MTAEBRMBEIIERFIN=
T——F—A—BRAKRZIK
FERM BMERENZ
MERRERZERTAR &

e (#&)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTIBEHHZE

MHZ2ETHBEER
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements 1 January 2013
BAMBwELERE135% NTEEGE —E2—=%—H—H
HKFRS 32 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Disclosure — 1 January 2014

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities
BERMBHREENEIR CRIA:RE-BEUBEERMBARTE —Z-—WHFE—H—H
CEHEN)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of 1 January 2013

a Surface Mine

Tk (ERMBRERE BRESEERBRZHRKA

ZB®)-REBE205%

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of adopting the above new
standards, amendments/revision to standards and
interpretations. The Group is not yet in a position
to state whether substantial changes to the Group's
accounting policies and financial statements
presentation will result.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC)
interpretations that are not yet effective that would
be expected to have a material impact on the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHREERTFTESHBRREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries 22 MEAT

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights (‘control’).
The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. The Group also assesses
existence of control where it does not have more
than 50% of the voting power but is able to govern
the financial and operating policies by virtue of
de-facto control. De-facto control may arise from
circumstances such as enhanced minority rights or
contractual terms between shareholders, etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies are eliminated. Profits and losses
resulting from inter-company transactions that
are recognised in assets are also eliminated. The
financial information of subsidiaries has been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

2.2.1

= A
A

MEAREASREEREE
HUBMKERRZ —E
B(EREKRENER) B
BHEEHBFBIREEZEN
(MEH]) -RFEAEERE
2l S —BER @FBHE
TR BEREEZ
FERZE -ERNEBEAFR
SR B50% B R B
REM A B2 B M B R 2 EHR
o Hn & el 2 A A
1 BRI D BURRHE
HIE ISk AR IR EHT B & A0 1K
F/RTHE -

MEAF R EZEGEERTA
SEEREZEZA AR L
REHIELZILE BEFILEE
BE o

SEARRRARIBZR S KMEE
BB HH - N RIER 5 PTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the aggregate fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the fair value of non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the aggregate of the
consideration and any non-controlling interest
is lower than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHREERTFTESHBRREE ()
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

22 MIEAR (&)
221446 (&)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(b)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries (b) WEBBITH|IEESE 2

without change of control MEBAEIHESE AR
#)

Transactions with non-controlling interests B JE P IR M 55 HEE 1T 1 B
that do not result in loss of control are EEYREEFIEZR
accounted for as equity transactions — that HGARINEEERR S
is, as transactions with the owners in their A AAEER A F 0
capacity as owners. The difference between ET2ZRG - EMER
fair value of any consideration paid and the RERAFEEANE
relevant share acquired of the carrying value ARAEEFEREEMR
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in BRGEZHENEZZ5
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non- RiEm AR [ IE1E R
controlling interests are also recorded in EmHE 2 BE IR
equity. AR

()  Disposal of subsidiaries (0 HEWBAR

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate (Note 2.3), joint
venture or financial asset (Note 2.10). In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

WAEETHEAFIES
EOERZERBZMEM
REBRERSERREZH
EEBREAFEEN
AE -MEEEZ S
REZPER -FHHRE
ABRTI 1R & 2 7] (K
22.3) EE M ESH
BEE (KMs£2.10) 2R
BEZmMs  AFERE
YA BREE ° LS - e Al
P E b2 WA R R
HZBERBEBE2ENE
BB AEBE B #
HEEHREESRBEY
B RN E A BB
ERAEEMERERA
NERZeBEH DA
e F B 18 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 EREERTFTESHBRREE(E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

22 HIEAR (&)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.3

2.2.2 Separate financial statements of the Company
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRM

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3

2.4

Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with
a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of post-tax loss of an associate’ in the income
statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group's financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial
information of associate has been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Board of Directors collectively.

2

REEERTES

2.3

2.4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RREERTETHBRREE (4)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation 25 HEEBRE
(a)  Functional and presentation currency (@) WEERZEHREM
Items included in the financial statements of each AEEZERB 2V BHREM
of the Group's entities are measured using the BEZEE DERZERBKSE
currency of the primary economic environment FIEzEERBERBEZEE
in which the entity operates (“the functional ([TheeEH 1) st &8 - NEa Bt
currency”). The consolidated financial statements BREARRAR 2 EE K
are presented in US$, which is the Company’s REBZE2EREEETES] -
functional and the Group's presentation currency.
(b)  Transactions and balances (b) XZRAEE

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance
costs — net’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement within
‘other losses — net'.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in equity.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

- Properties 20-50 years
- Plant and machinery 10-20 years
- Motor vehicles 5-8 years
- Office equipment and

other fixed assets 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘other losses — net’, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

Separately acquired trademarks, brand name and
licence, which have finite useful life are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of trademarks,
brand name and licence over their estimated useful
lives of 6 to 10 years.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RREERTETHBRREE (4)

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.7 Intangible assets 27 EBREE

(a)  Goodwill (a) EHE
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, EERKERBEAR BEA
associates and joint ventures and represents AREEEEREEL WED
the excess of the consideration transferred over EEREBL AR EN I E
the Group's interest in net fair value of the net FA BRI EEFE  BERK
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent RBERTE = RN HR
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the BH 2 FERERATFEZH
non-controlling interest in the acquiree. o
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken PMETFETRERS T
annually or more frequently if events or changes RESEMHHR B RRERER
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. Al IR R ER - (B RS
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the TRad o ERREEE W E e
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value HHEE BRERAEEHEAT
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any BERBEEXNAZREE  F[
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense WEEN R AR - BH#&
and is not subsequently reversed. e -
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill RETRER  REBE O
acquired in a business combination is allocated to RN 2B YREERAR
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or BREHBRMGE L THREE
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from BN ([REEEBEM])K
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or —HRTEEEN - BESE
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated BB —HEMAERE
represents the lowest level within the entity at AP EIREREE 2 &IEE
which the goodwill is monitored for internal T o BB P& 5 A8 B E AT
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at i o
the operating segment level.
(b)  Trademarks, brand name and licence (b) BE mESERER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (continued)

(c)  Computer software
Acquired computer software licence are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale
when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell and a sale is considered highly probably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHREERTFTESHBRREE ()
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 B EE
2.10.1 748

2.10 Financial assets
2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as the loans
and receivables. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for amounts that
are settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise trade and other
receivables (Note 2.12), cash and cash equivalents
(Note 2.13), amount due from the non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary, loan to a subsidiary and
amounts due from subsidiaries in the balance sheet.

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Loans and receivables are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.
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e ISR MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 EHREERTFTESHBRREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 Bi%EE (§)
2.10.3 B 1E

2.10 Financial assets (continued)
2.10.3 Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHREERTFTESHBRREE ()
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 BM%EE (F)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)

2.10.3 Impairment (continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income

2.10.3 Bi1E ()
MEEZHMRESESSEE
Tk 2 » i ek 2> ] 2 87 ath Bt 2
ERRREREEZSEMH (H
MEBAZEAFTRE K
Z) BZAEERZBEE
BARGRAKREZRAED -

statement.

2.11 Inventories 211 78
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net 1575 DARK 7N 3 AT 2 30 J5HE M & B8
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted KB ARR o BORIR INAE AT & -
average method. The cost of finished goods and work- BB mAE R M ABIERME B
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other BAL HhBEEKANMBEEER
direct costs and related production overheads (based on B(AERERTE) BILEE
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. BRER - IR FERGNES
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the HEEBRERANIEEECHEER
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling ATE -
expenses.
Spare parts and consumables are included within M4 FROBEFEmaT AEE R - Wi
inventories and stated at cost, using the weighted A E ARSI B o
average method.

2.12 Trade and other receivables 212 ESREMERTE

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e RIS R MY R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.16

2.17

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@)  Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e RIS R MY R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax

(b)

0)

(i)

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 EREERTFTESHBRREE ()
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 217 EHREZERESD (&)
(c)  Offsetting (c) By
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset BLEMSTEERABERS
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset SEITE 2 R BT IR & B
current tax assets against current tax liabilities ERAIRIB B E G MHEE - B
and when the deferred income taxes assets and BEMSHEAERBENEH
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same FR [ — B A5 A 1m) Rl — FE AR B
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or BRI TRAERTERBEKR 2
different taxable entities where there is an intention RSt B F R ERIEE
to settle the balances on a net basis. #75 0] B FEHEH
2.18 Employee benefits 2.18 EERA
(a)  Pension obligations (a) RUIKZEME
The Group participates in a number of defined AEE2EZEATEENRSET
contribution plans, the assets of which are generally g EEE—RBEBEVEER
held in independently administered funds. The A o A K E [ E #E ARG
Group's contributions to the defined contribution EHER A MR EREH-

retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.

(b)  Termination benefits (b) AR

Termination benefits are payable when employment EASEEEEETRKA
is terminated by the Group before the normal A4 IEEER 8 EEE#E
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts X EHBEERABREREBET
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these W R IERIGRESBIZAS o
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits REBEER FBAAZRIEER
when it is demonstrably committed to a termination RRE—-—BEFANERXGE
and when the entity has a detailed formal plan to RIEBBEEENER CRBH
terminate the employment of current employees 5] ) AT BE ) Br 7 58 4% L Al 75 1
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an meo iR —HELNUZE S
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the FEE AL - RS I AR5 #E 2 iR TR
termination benefits are measured based on the HigmA EEErES ABGH
number of employees expected to accept the offer. EofERERHEBA T @A
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the XA EBAEEIE AEE -

end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REEBEERTESHHFERE (H)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.18 Employee benefits (continued) 2.18 EERR (&)

2.19

(c)  Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(d)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Contingent liabilities and provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability, if any, is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

76  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk /3EIBE (#258) HMR A H

2.19

(c) TEALET#)
AEERE -GN (BEA
DA R A A I A T A
BIR) BEAERARERRA
X AEEREHNRERBE
BPIEEHEEEERER
=

(d) ESEZEH
EERHEFBRZIEMNNERE
BER - BEZRBED B
BREEBKRBRTSER -

RAEBREE
EASEEEBRENSHMEER
BHEESHEEEE MRAEFTE
EERMARELUABTEEREREDE
W AT S ET R VR B - NE BB
BRLARRAS L BIEER R -

ZARABERAD HERNEMTA B
SIEZEME FRERMKE R
ZREMGELRETEER ﬁgl
YRR EHELRKENHE
Eﬁﬂﬁ%%%ﬁT%%lE%i%
EHEIBZRBEME BAHRATET
FRHRALBEER AT BARHE
ASEEEMAA AR

FARBE(HE) TEWRER BE
AR A MR M R R ER - BIHFE
BRIt F G AL HIRE
IRBRE - L FRERRER SR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 EHREERTFTESHBRREE ()
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.20 BR KW= R E KA

2.20 Revenue and other income recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group's activities, as described below. The
Group bases its estimates of return on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a)  Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group
entity has delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.

(b)  Sales of surplus electricity
Sales of surplus electricity are recognised based on
units of electricity sold as recorded by meters during
the year.

(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

(d)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e RIS R MY R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.21

2.22

2.23

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’'s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Dividend proposed or declared after the reporting period
but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts under which the Group
accepts significant risk from a third party by agreeing to
compensate that party on the occurrence of a specified
uncertain future event are accounted for in a manner
similar to insurance contracts. Provisions are recognised
when it is probable that the Group has obligations under
such guarantees and an outflow of economic resources
will be required to settle the obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group’s operating units. The board provides written
principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess
liquidity.

(a)  Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Vietnam Dong against US$. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments in foreign operations.
The Group has not hedged its foreign
exchange risk.

At 31 December 2011, if the Vietnam Dong
had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit (2010: loss) for the year would
have been US$685,000 (2010: US$937,000)
lower/higher (2010: higher/lower), mainly as
a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of Vietnam Dong-denominated
trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk. The Group has not hedged its cash
flow interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2011, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit (2010: loss) for the year would
have been US$138,000 (2010: US$149,000)
lower/higher (2010: higher/lower), mainly as
a result of higher/lower interest expense on
floating rate borrowings.

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, amount due from the
non-controlling interest of a subsidiary and other
receivables.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products are made to customers with appropriate
credit histories. The Group has policies to assess
the credit quality of the customer, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and
other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on
internal or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(©)

Credit risk (continued)

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, amount due from the non-
controlling interest of a subsidiary and other
receivables included in the consolidated balance
sheets represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to these financial assets.

For bank deposits and bank balances, the Group
only uses banks and financial institutions with good
reputation. As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, all
the bank balances as detailed in Note 13 are held
in major financial institutions, which are either state
owned or with high credit quality. Management
believes that the credit risk for bank deposits and
bank balances is minimal.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the amount
due from the non-controlling interest of a subsidiary
is neither past due nor impaired. Given that all the
balance is within credit period, management are of
opinion that the receivable from the non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary is of low credit risk.

No impairment has been provided for other
receivables as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.
Other receivables do not contain impaired assets.
Management are of opinion that these balances are
of low credit risk.

Liquidity risk
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group's
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group's liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
(Note 13) on the basis of expected cash flows. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

3 HMERRTHE(R)

Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEREBEE (&)
The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company's THRBIREEBES LB AR
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based THERBEAREEERARRZHEE
on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the BED BRI EARIEITDI - NEK
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the BRBERZEEREARTRE
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. ME e
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
-FR -—-FEWE WFEERE BBEE At
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TEx FTET TR T T
Group e
At 31 December 2011  R=F——&+-A=+—H
Bank borrowings (Note) $R7Tf5 & (HisE) 24,046 494 16,264 - 40,804
Trade payables [ERE 58K 23,817 - - - 23,817
Other payables H i fE FRIR 12,846 - - - 12,846
Due to related parties ~ [Eff B REA LB 2,399 - - - 2,399
At 31 December 2010 RZ=ZFT—FTF+-A=+—H
Bank borrowings (Note) $RTEE (HizE) 24,852 606 21,412 = 46,870
Trade payables BB 5K 26,030 - - = 26,030
Long-term payable to BN ABEA T2 KEFHIE
a related party 2,145 2,166 - - 4,311
Other payables H i fE FRIR 19,847 - - - 19,847
Due to related parties ~ FEfI A EEA LB 323 - - - 323
Company PN
At 31 December 2011  HR=F——F+=-A=+—H
Bank borrowings (Note) $R7Tf&5 & (Fi&E) 6,039 = = = 6,039
Due to related parties ~ FENfERIEA LB 2,399 - - - 2,399
At31 December 2010 R=F—FF+-A=+—H
Bank borrowings (Note)  $R77f8 & (&) 9,495 - - - 9,495
Long-term payable to BN EBEATZREHKE
a related party 2,145 2,166 - - 4,311
Note: ff T -

The balance includes interest payable on bank borrowings up to
their respective maturities.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2

MERBRER (&)
EXEBER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total bank borrowings divided by
equity holders’ equity as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet. Total borrowings include non-current
borrowings and current borrowings.

During 2011, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2010, was to maintain a minimal gearing ratio. The
gearing ratios at 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as
follows:

AEEERESZBRRREARE
BB ARBEEREE 2
RREGERE RN BRERFEA®
TR ARGRAE BARGEEIA
D BARRA

RTHRFAREELGERE ARER
BERERNTRRZBESE Mk
RBEEEXR BIFRODIHEEE
VAR R (B 7 o

BENH AT ARERAE
B EEEERANR R ERE
AEERBRAT ZBRTEES
AR 5 ATERSEE - IS R B IE
SERBE R RRBEE

WoF——F AEEZERR-F
—EERRBE AN B DA
EABEEREERT R-B——
FR-F-FE+-B=+-AZ

BEEBGBLEENT:

Group

rEH
2011 2010
Us$’000 Us$'000
FXx FET
Total bank borrowings (Note 17) BWIRITEE (MzE17) 38,073 43,134

WA A ER
Owners’ equity (including (BFEG AR 2

non-controlling interest in equity) IR E R ) 271,621 266,176
Total capital B 309,694 309,310
Gearing ratio BEAMBLX 12% 14%

Management considers that the current gearing ratio is
reasonable.

EEERARRBEEAGBLXRES
He
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

3.4

Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables and trade and other payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values because of
their short maturities. The fair value of financial assets
and liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group

3

for similar financial instruments.

Financial instruments by category — Group and

Company

been applied to the line items below:

The accounting policies for financial instruments have

R RMREE ()
33 APEM

3.4

E R YR 5 8RN E R MR IR
A Ko &1 B 55 PR R e L Al JE A 5R0R
BREEMNE  AEEREEREER
MERE R EAFERE - BIREM
BELMBEERBBZRFE TR
A& B R 2A & mh T B 3 R ) 35 A
XFARKANA R REMMAE -

REHES 2 HBTA-FEER
ENNS
ERUTEARREMMB TR
BB

2011 2010
Us$’000 Us$'000
TEx FET
Group rEE
Loans and receivables B K e RIE
Long-term loan and receivables R EIE R B W IR 329 -
Trade receivables B E 5 BRI 32,714 40,328
Amounts due from non-controlling JE W Bt B R R SR AR
interest of a subsidiary W a2 R IE 1,431 1,308
Other receivables H th & U R IE 7,180 4,873
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBFEEEEY 45,518 34,536
87,172 81,045
2011 2010
US$‘000 Us$'000
FTEx FET
Group rEH
Financial liabilities at amortised cost & $5pk AH{E 2
Mg aE
Long-term payable to EN—BBREALZ
a related party KEFIE = 2,074
Trade payables FET & Z R K 23,817 26,030
Other payables H A FE 1 5RIB 12,374 19,803
Due to related parties et B REEA L8 2,399 2,280
Bank borrowings |ITEE 38,073 43,134
76,663 93,321
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMBERBER(#E)
3.4 Financial instruments by category — Group and 3 REREASz2UBIAE-FXEER
Company (continued) ARATE (&)
2011 2010
us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FZET
Company KRAHE
Loans and receivables B3 & e FkE
Long-term loan to a subsidiary N EPNEIE RS = E 13,200 10,500
Due from subsidiaries JE W BT B A Rl R IE 50,146 50,809
Other receivables H b pE W SRR 19 10
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 723 1,151
64,088 62,470
2011 2010
Us$'000 Us$'000
SRESPT FET
Company b NN
Financial liabilities at amortised cost ~ IZE KA EZHBEE
Long-term payable to a related party Eff—REMEEALTZ
RHAFIA - 2,074
Other payables H b fE S 3R IB 1,580 1,272
Due to related parties BB BEEALRIE 2,399 2,280
Bank borrowings RITEE 5,850 9,288
9,829 14,914
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates (Note 8).

(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and non-indefinite life intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) and non-
indefinite life intangible assets (Note 8) are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

The recoverable amount of the property, plant and
equipment is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period. These
calculations and valuations require the use of judgements
and estimates.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 ETZSHGHRAE (&)
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant and (b) Y¥ BERZENEREFHERL
equipment and non-indefinite life intangible assets EENMEERE (&)
(continued)
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations RUGHEEREEZ EFEMEMNT °
are as follows.
Vietnam The PRC
HE
2011 2010 2011 2010
Selling price growth rate EEERE 4% - 44% 8% - 30% 3% - 10% 8% — 19%
Discount rate AR =K 11.5% 11.5% 12.5% 12.5%

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of
each CGU within the operating segment.

An impairment charge of US$4,005,000 (2010:
US$2,055,000) on property, plant and equipment
in Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise Co., Ltd.
(“Shandong Vedan Snowflake”) during the course of
the 2011 vyear, resulting in the carrying amount of the
property, plant and equipment being written down to its
recoverable amount. The low recoverable amount mainly
represented the continuous loss making of Shandong
Vedan Snowflake and to confront the Group's latest
business plan in the PRC.

If the budgeted selling price growth rate used in the
value-in-use calculation for the property, plant and
equipment in Shandong Vedan Snowflake had been 2%
lower than management’s estimates at 31 December
2011 (for example, 1% instead of 3%), with all other
variables held constant, the Group would have recognised
a further impairment of property, plant and equipment by
Us$1,500,000.

DIBE D FAZRINR © ELLF
ERAABRRK-

RZT—F |UIERKRASEEES
BRARI([WURKFSE]) 2
TR 55 K 5% 45 Rk B 2 54,005,0003
7t (ZZ—=4 :2,055,000%7C) °
BEYE  BRE REE 2 REEHRR
ZHUEKREE - JEKREB IS E
ERERLURKASEFESBE UK
NEAEBMZETPRERE -

WET EILRR BT - BB K&
HERBERMAER ZEESE Y
RERBEEENR=-Z—F+=A
=+ —BAEEZEFR2% (il -
BREEA1%MIE3% ) » fFTAEHAt
BHEF TR BIASEBGE—E
R BB & E R E 1,500,000
I
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation
charges for its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets by reference to the estimated periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of these assets. These estimates are based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of
similar nature and functions. Management will adjust
the depreciation and amortisation charges where useful
lives vary from previously estimates. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review
could result in a change in useful lives and therefore
depreciation and amortisation expense in the future
periods.

Current income taxes and deferred income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC,
Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the periods in which such estimate is changed.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Board of Directors collectively. The Directors review the
Group's internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. Management has determined the operating
segments based on these reports.

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers that
are used to make strategic decisions. These reports include
segment revenue, segment assets and capital expenditures.

The chief operating decision-makers consider the business
from a geographical aspect. In presenting information on the
basis of operating segments, segment revenue is based on
the geographical presence of customers. Segment assets and
capital expenditures are based on the geographical location of
the assets.

The chief operating decision makers mainly assess the
performance based on revenue derived by each geographical
segment. Accordingly, the segment performance is restricted to
revenue information.

In 2011 and 2010, the revenue from the Group's largest
customer amounted to less than 10 per cent of the Group's
total revenue.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) DEWEFE (8)
(i) Segment revenue (i) DEBUkz=E

2011 2010
us$’000 us$'000
FEx FZET
Vietnam fisAE 180,624 170,003
The PRC s 46,779 51,790
Japan A 7 86,039 66,429
Taiwan =) 6,909 5,781

ASEAN member countries HEKE
(other than Vietnam) (T EiEE) 36,310 25,975
Other regions H 3 (2 26,239 16,129
382,900 336,107

(ii) Capital expenditures (i) EAXXZH

2011 2010
Us$’000 us$'000
FEx FZET
Vietnam fisAE) 8,961 16,794
The PRC s 1,758 1,641
10,719 18,435

Capital expenditures are allocated based on where the

assets are located.

Capital expenditures comprise additions of property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets and land use rights.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 DEWEE (18)
(iii) Total assets (iii) #AEE

2011 2010
us$'000 US$'000
FEx FZET
Vietnam o] 287,765 300,089
The PRC oy 69,548 67,905
Hong Kong BB 3,133 2,032
Taiwan =] 859 785
Singapore roansg 62 65
361,367 370,876

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are
located.

Property, plant and equipments are monitored by the
management at the operating segment level. The
following is a summary of amortisation, depreciation
and impairment of non-current assets (Notes 6, 7 and 8)
allocation for each operating segment.

BREETDRBEEMRET DA -

ME - BEMRBEHEEENEED
ABEHER U TESRRE LS
DEEIFERBEE (Kizte - 7k8)#
B TERRERE-

Amortisation

and
depreciation Impairment
BERITE A
US$'000 Us$’000
FEx FEx
2011 —E——F
Vietnam fig=a] 22,171 250
The PRC s 2,976 4,005
25,147 4,255
Amortisation
and
depreciation Impairment
B ITE BE
US$'000 Us$'000
FET FET
2010 —E-ZF
Vietnam fiq=a] 24,106 =
The PRC s 3,086 2,055
27,192 2,055
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6 LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net book values are
analysed as follows:

+ th 5 A 4
AEERLERBE I ESEERZROZ
BHER HEREFEITET

2011 2010
us$'000 us$'000
SFEER FZET
Outside Hong Kong, held on EBBUINGE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years TEERTF 2L 2,200 654
2011 2010
us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 654 6,472
Exchange differences R 36 196
Additions NE - 1,502
Amortisation of land use rights - b {58 R
(Notes 5 and 21) (BFaE5 K% 21) (64) (86)
Transfer from/(to) non-current assets #HEe (BB ELE
held for sale (Note ii) JERBEE (MaEii) 1,574 (7,430)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—¢© 2,200 654
Notes: B -
0) In respect of the Group’s land use rights, Mao Tai Foods (Xiamen) () SAEBE Y L FERERS  RPRK

Co. Ltd (“Xiamen Maotai”), Shandong Vedan Snowflake
and Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd (“Shanghai Vedan”),
subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC, have been
granted rights to use the land by the relevant authority for 50
years, which expire in 2042, 2056 and 2060 respectively.

In September 2010, Shanghai Vedan entered into an agreement
with an independent third party for sales of certain land use
rights and property, plant and equipment (the “Agreement”). At
31 December 2010, the related assets had been reclassified as
non-current assets held for sale.

In August 2011, a supplementary agreement to the Agreement
was entered into by both parties to agree that a piece of land
with carrying value of US$1,574,000 would be retained by
Shanghai Vedan and accordingly this land was transferred back to
land use rights in current year.

92  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk /3 BB (#258) HMR A =

(if)

Y RREZHBAREERR (EM)AB
RAR ([EMESE])  WRKASER
FERBCEAERAR ([LERADE
EEHERETABA+FENLIER
B DR ZEN=F ZTRAAFR=
TARTEEm e

R-Z—FFNA EERFEBYE=
FEALHHREESR T L EREARY
X BEERE(TZBE]) R_F—
ZE+_A=+—H FHREECEHNS
BEAREHEZERDEE-

RZT——F)\R EFnZBET LM
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 ME - BRERRE
Office
equipment
and other
fixed assets
Construction- Plant and Motor  BWAZHRME
in-progress Properties machinery vehicles REM Total
HEIR WE  BERKS AE EEEE A%
UsD’000 UsD'000 UsD'000 UsD'000 UsD’000 UsD’000
Txr Txn Txn Txn Txx Txr
At 1 January 2010 R-Z-%%-A-H
Cost A 12,133 101,228 377,713 8,706 31,772 531,552
Accumulated depreciation ZitE - (44,581) (257,480) (6,790) (27,537) (336,388)
Accumulated impairment ZitRE - (1,064) (4,501) - (22) (5,587)
Net book amount HREFHE 12,133 55,583 115,732 1,916 4,213 189,577
Year ended 31 December 2010 BE-Z-%2f
TZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FOEmFE 12,133 55,583 115,732 1,916 4,213 189,577
Exchange differences EHESE - 352 566 26 14 958
Additions wNE 15,202 = 1,168 243 189 16,802
Transfer BE (20,637) 5,050 15,446 - 141 -
Disposals HE - (70) (491) - (107) (668)
Depreciation (Notes 5 and 21) W& (MFsR21) - (5,055) (19,234) (449) (878) (25,616)
Impairment loss (Notes 4, 5 and 21)  JRERBE (K4 -5K21) - (498) (1,557) - - (2,055)
Transfer to non-current assets BREERELEFRDEE
held for sale (Note 6) (FizE6) - (4,985) - - = (4,985)
Closing net book amount FREAFE 6,698 50,377 111,630 1,736 3,572 174,013
At 31 December 2010 R=ZZB-BF+-H=+-H
Cost KA 6,698 102,547 402,442 8,849 31,523 552,059
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE - (50,608) (284,754) (7,113) (27,929) (370,404)
Accumulated impairment RitAfE = (1,562) (6,058) = (22) (7,642)
Net book amount IREFE 6,698 50,377 111,630 1,736 3,572 174,013
Year ended 31 December 2011 B2-Z2-—-F
+ZRZ+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 6,698 50,377 111,630 1,736 3,572 174,013
Exchange differences [ER = - 168 931 9 = 1,108
Additions NE 8,854 28 1,183 370 284 10,719
Transfer HiE (10,430) 3,034 7,335 - 61 -
Disposals HE - ©) (381) (14) (46) (442)
Depreciation (Notes 5 and 21) WE (KiE5%21) - (5,000) (17,232) (500) (864) (23,596)
Impairment loss (Notes 4, 5and 21)  BUEBE (KfizE4 5K21) - (1,166) (3,089) - = (4,255)
Closing net book amount FREAFE 5,122 47,440 100,377 1,601 3,007 157,547
At 31 December 2011 R-Z-—-f+t=A=t+-H
Cost KA 5,122 104,144 405,331 8,687 31,378 554,662
Accumulated depreciation 2HE - (53,976) (295,807) (7,086) (28,349) (385,218)
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE - (2,728) (9,147) - (22) (11,897)
Net book amount IREFE 5,122 47,440 100,377 1,601 3,007 157,547
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7

Certain property, plant and equipment of the Group is pledged REBAETHME BWERREERR:
as security for the Group’s current and non-current bank LABR 15 2N &5 [ A9 B HA J2 SERD HRSR 77 {8 B 40
borrowings as follows: Ik

ME -BERERM(HE)

2011 2010
us$'000 Us$'000
FTEx F=Ex
Net book amount of pledged property, EEEME -BEE&E
plant and equipment (Note 35) BREDFE (MiE35) 21,104 22,715

Depreciation expense of US$19,485,000 (2010:
US$21,691,000) has been charged in cost of sales, US$46,000
(2010: US$49,000) in selling and distribution expenses
and US$4,065,000 (2010: US$3,876,000) in administrative

8 ¥ 119,485,000 T (—ZE—F 4
21,691,000 7T ) 46,0007 (=%

£ : 49,0003 JT ) #14,065,0003% 7T ( =
—Z 4 :3,876,000% 7T) E R HE KA -

AF DY
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expenses. SHE R HFH T A RITEF X R kR -
ZA
8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 #JLAE
Group Company
AEE N
Software
Goodwill  and licence Brand name  Trademarks Total  Trademarks
BE BAERER i JeE L A& BE
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TET TET TET TER TER TET
At 1 January 2010 R-Z2-Z%-f—-H
Cost B%N 8,317 1,511 1,142 12,089 23,059 12,089
Accumulated amortisation 25TEH (158) (424) (456) (5,843) (6,881) (5,843)
Net book amount BEHEE 8,159 1,087 686 6,246 16,178 6,246
Year ended 31 December 2010 BEZ-Z-%2%
TZA=t-HLFE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 8,159 1,087 686 6,246 16,178 6,246
Exchange differences EXEE 230 - - - 230 -
Additions NE - 131 - = 131 -
Amortisation charge (Notes 5 and 21) % $#5I (FizE5K%21) - (167) (114) (1,209) (1,490) (1,209)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 8,389 1,051 572 5,037 15,049 5,037
At 31 December 2010 R-E-2%+-A=1+-H
Cost AR 8,547 1,642 1,142 12,089 23,420 12,089
Accumulated amortisation ZEtEH (158) (591) (570) (7,052) (8,371) (7,052)
Net book amount BREFHE 8,389 1,051 572 5,037 15,049 5,037
Year ended 31 December 2011 BZ-2—-&
+ZA=t-RHLEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 8,389 1,051 572 5,037 15,049 5,037
Exchange differences EHES 391 - - - 391 =
Amortisation charge (Notes 5 and 21)  3HE % (HIE5K21) - (164) (114) (1,209) (1,487) (1,209)
Closing net book amount FREAFE 8,780 887 458 3,828 13,953 3,828
At 31 December 2011 R=B-—-f+ZH=t+-H
Cost BN 8,938 1,642 1,142 12,089 23,811 12,089
Accumulated amortisation 25T EH (158) (755) (684) (8,261) (9,858) (8,261)
Net book amount BEHFE 8,780 887 458 3,828 13,953 3,828
Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses. B X P AT ©
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) mEEE (&)
Impairment tests for goodwill: BmERENR:
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according NEEE A fEEED S IR A 2 AR

to operating segment. TEADBEE -
The PRC Vietnam
LY M
MSG MSG
packaging packaging Total
R R 7 ERE a5t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
SR SFEEoE S
At 31 December 2011 R=_ZE—F+=—A=+—H 8,050 730 8,780
At 31 December 2010 RN-_ZE—ZEF+=-A=+—H 7,659 730 8,389

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates stated below if applicable. The growth does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the MSG
packaging in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as
follows.

B%HXEEA””LLZTHSZ@%%’EE&@%T?TE
H o ZEGEERNEEES E AFH
BIEEFERRENR e R=ETEREST
ERFHzREREFEAATEI 2 A5
BREHE (ER) - BRI RHRR
ReBUMEEZRKIBEBRENRETHE

RAFTEEREEZEEREMOT -

Gross margin Sy p
Growth rate 18 5 R
Discount rate HrIE =&

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each
CGU within the operating segment.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts of
goodwill are based would not cause the carrying amounts to
exceed the recoverable amounts.

2011 2010

18.1% - 21.2% 16.0% - 22.9%
1% 1%

12.5% 12.5%

ZEBRANRIMEESBAZRIRIRES

EEENDREBEXRENEHAMSERL
BHMEEBREENEX -FAFREXTIHR
ARG 3R 3 - I = BR AR R A8 & 0 8B 2 15 TE L

i@ o
RA

EEEMRRE BENRRE S B KED
IZBRNEMAEARED IS ERER
EEBBE AN EEE -
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LONG-TERM

FHEARZRE BF—HMWEL

LOAN TO A SUBSIDIARY AND AMOUNTS DUE FIZCEHERREKHELSTRIE—
FROM SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY b /N
2011 2010
US$°000 US$'000
FEx SFEEE
Unlisted shares Ik LT D 165,241 170,390

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the long-term loan granted to
a subsidiary is unsecured, denominated in US$ and repayable
on 31 July 2013 and carries an interest at three-month SIBOR.
The carrying value of loan to a subsidiary approximates its fair
value.

In 2011, included in amounts due from subsidiaries, short-
term US$ dominated loan of US$5,571,000 to a subsidiary was
unsecured and repayable on 31 December 2012 and carried an
interest at three-month SIBOR (2010: unsecured, interest-free,
denominated in US$ and repayable on 31 March 2011). Other
amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free,
denominated in US$ and repayable on demand.

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2011:

REE——FR T FF+_H=+—
B BT HHNBRR2EKBERDE
EIR AXTAHERAR-_ZT—=F+tA
=+—BEE WR=(EAFHINKRTR
ERBFE BT RNBARERZE
E{E B H R FERE -

RZF——F ERWEEBRAIREF
5,571,000 2 SEAE T E R A EE A -
AR —_E——HF+-_A=+—RHEE I
Z=EAFMERTAEREFTE(=ZZ
—ZF EEA R UETFERER
—E-—F=-f=+—HEE) mERK
MEBARZHEMRBEAEER 28 I
EostE WAREREE-

THRER=—_E—F+—A=+—Hz=x
C )= /NE]

Particulars of

Place of issued/paid up
incorporation/ Principal activities and share capital Interest
Name establishment place of operation BET/HR held
£ HEMAY, MUY FEXBREELY RAFEE FHEER
Directly held:
EEHE -
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands  Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares 100%
("BVI") EEBREER of US$1 each
EERAES 1000 G AR E &
([EBRXES]) 1R E B
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares 100%

KERELES ERBREBEK
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FHEARZRE BF—HMWEL
Bz £ R B o B B U S 42 R Bk 0 —
FOF (#8)

9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LONG-TERM 9
LOAN TO A SUBSIDIARY AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (continued)

Particulars of

Place of issued/paid up
incorporation/ Principal activities and share capital Interest
Name establishment place of operation BET/HR held
=1 HAMKY/ RUE FEEBREEHDY PR3 1B REER
Indirectly held:
EERFE
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore $$106,067,921 100%
N TEF IR B 2R Ordinary shares
106,067,921
AN T E B AR
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore $$34,944,929 100%
3 TR R A E R Ordinary shares
34,944,929
BN T AR
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Vietnam Manufacture and sale of 131,970,000 100%
Corporation Limited i fermentation-based food Ordinary shares of
WA () R BR A A additives and biochemical US$1 each
products and cassava starch- 131,970,000/%
based industrial products FREEIET
including MSG, GA, modified B A AR
starch, glucose syrup, soda and
acid in Vietnam and for export
T BE I SHE B EER R AN
ErERRAEBRH IXER:
BERE AQE LITRH
BERER T RERHE A
Mao Tai Foods (Xiamen) Co., Ltd.  PRC Packaging and sale of MSG, starch ~ US$20,270,000 100%
KZEEm(EM)ERAA H and beverages in the PRC Registered capital
FEREBERHERE BRHREH  20,270,000% T
& A
Orsan Vietnam Co., Ltd. Vietnam Packaging and sale of MSG 1,838,282 100%
fife] in Vietnam Ordinary shares of
TEHEaERHERE US$1 each
1,838,282/ &%
EE1ZTH
AR
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FHEARZRE BF—HMWEL
Bz £ 1A 5 o B B Ut I 42 R Bk R —
FOF ()

9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LONG-TERM 9
LOAN TO A SUBSIDIARY AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (continued)

Particulars of

Place of issued/paid up
incorporation/ Principal activities and share capital Interest
Name establishment place of operation BRI/ B8R held
=1 HEMAY, MUY FEXEBRREELY PR3 1B FHEER
Indirectly held.: (continued)
HEERE: (£)
Shandong Vedan Snowflake PRC Manufacture and sale of MSG US$17,200,000 70%
Enterprise Co., Ltd. H in the PRC Registered capital
LWRENEEEXER LA EREEEREERES 17,200,000 7
& A
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. PRC Packaging and sale of MSG US$9,800,000 100%
Ltd. H in the PRC Registered capital
HERFAERER AR EREEEKEERE 9,800,000% 7
A& A
Veyu Enterprise Co., Ltd. Vietnam Manufacture and sale of cassava 2,300,000 100%
=] starch-based industrial products Ordinary shares of
in Vietnam and for export US$1 each
EUEAUEREERZRN X 2,300,000% & A%
EmiHE A 1B 15T /)
Xiamen Darong Import & Export ~ PRC Trading of cassava starch-based Us$254,000 100%
Trade Co., Ltd. H industrial products in the PRC Registered capital
EFARSELOESERAR EPEEBAZRN IXER 254,000 7T
i & A
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10 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP AND

COMPANY

10 ®-—
L

MBEAFzRE-FREARE

2011 2010

Us$’000 Us$'000

FTxx SFEETE

Unlisted shares, at cost JE EMRRD (RACA) 1,230 1,230

Movement on the investment in an associate is as follows:

R—HBERRZREZEHOMWT

Group Company
rEH b N
2011 2010 2011 2010
Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000 US$'000
FXE5x FET FTEx FET
At 1 January m—A—H 1,230 - 1,230 =
Additions NE - 1,230 - 1,230
Share of post-tax loss of FEAE — B EE & A A

an associate RE2ER (222) = = -
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 1,008 1,230 1,230 1,230

The Group's share of the results of the associate and its assets

AEBEREBEDNRZEENREEER

and liabilities are as follows: BENT:
Country of Particulars of %
Name incorporation issued share capital interest held
% &E it BY 32 B =X ERTRAFE BEER%
Dacin International Holdings Cayman Islands 4,100,000 shares of 30
Limited MEeHS US$1 each
EMRBEEZERERAR 4,100,0005%
FREAE1ET 2R
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10

11

12

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP AND 10
COMPANY (continued)

Summary of financial information on associate — effective
interest

R—HEBELATRZRE-*KEREX
27 ()
BELNRZHBERNBE -BRES

Share of
Assets Liabilities Revenue loss
EE =i Wz EiEEE
US$'000 us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET F=T FETT F=T
At 31 December 2011 R=ZF——%+=AH
Ear=1g 1,008 - - (222)
At 31 December 2010 RZT—ZTF+=HA
=+—H 1,230 - - -
The associate is principally engaged in real estate development BERNRNBEEENRERMEEZR B
in Vietnam. As of 31 December 2011, the associate has not ZE-T——F+-HA=+—H BEAA
started any development project. m AR R ERERIBR -
INVENTORIES 1 &8
2011 2010
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Spare parts and consumables TR 3,500 4,350
Raw materials R 1% 47,177 46,914
Work in progress & 6,423 4,771
Finished goods BUAK 38,238 27,158
95,338 83,193

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included

ERBAXRFAHEEXNEAZFEK

in cost of sales amounted to US$289,757,000 (2010: 7N /289,757,000% L (=& — T F -
US$241,547,000). 241,547,000%7¢) °
TRADE RECEIVABLES 12 BRBBER
The fair values of trade receivables are as follows: BB SRR Z AFEDT
Group
AEHE
2011 2010
us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FZET
Trade receivables from third parties ERE=FE SERK 33,987 41,600
Trade receivables from a related party FEREBEBEALTE SRR
(Note 34(d)) (B EE34(d)) 110 250
Less: provision for impairment of B EWE 5 R SUR B BB
trade receivables (1,383) (1,522)
32,714 40,328
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RE KRR
12 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 12 BRSHER (&)
The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on BWE SEFR 2 EERBERMNEE120
delivery to 120 days and the ageing of the trade receivables R MEWREZRFRERBHZREKS
based on invoice date is as follows: HIBUENE
Group
rEH
2011 2010
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx F=T
Current RN ER 21,400 27,666
31 — 90 days 31290k 7,395 8,906
91 — 180 days 91£180K 2,444 2,959
181 — 365 days 1812365k 1,224 809
Over 365 days 365K £ 1,634 1,510
34,097 41,850
As of 31 December 2011, trade receivables of US$27,025,000 R—_ZETE——F+=-_A=+—8"
(2010: US$31,337,000) were fully performing. 27,025,000 TEKRE ZGER(ZT—F
% 131,337,000%7T) 2 8B R 4 -
As of 31 December 2011, trade receivables of US$5,685,000 RZE——F+=H=+—H" 5,685,000
(2010: US$7,372,000) were past due but not impaired. These EnX(=ZZFT—=F4:7,372,000% L) 2 fE
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is WE ZEREENEABILARRKE B BRIE
no significant financial difficulty and based on past experience, HETWEERVERNEZEYIERA
the overdue amounts can be recovered. The ageing of those B o RIFBELTR B HARIA AT O - 5%
past due but not impaired receivables is as follows: Z R EYE I AROBE 2 FEURIE 2 BRER D AT
R
Group
rEH
2011 2010
Us$’000 US$'000
FXE7x F=T
Overdue by %60 HA
Current to 90 days BNH 290K 3,942 5,722
91 — 180 days 91E180K 1,681 1,636
Over 180 days 180K A £ 62 14
5,685 7,372
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12 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As of 31 December 2011, trade receivables of US$1,387,000
(2010: US$3,141,000) were impaired. The amount of the
provision was US$1,383,000 as of 31 December 2011 (2010:
US$1,522,000). The individually impaired receivables mainly
relate to prior customers, which are in unexpectedly difficult
economic situations. It was assessed that a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. The ageing of these
receivables is as follows:

12

BB ZER (&)
R—ZB——F+_A=+—H EKE
2 BE5%1,387,000E L (=ZF — & F:
3,141,000 L) E T RE - R=2F——
F+-A=+—HEENEESTER
1,383,0003% 7t (—ZZF—ZT 4 : 1,522,000
F 7T ) o &Rk (B B FE I8 = 2 B R Y
EATER R ERAENNEL G M D
FE W R IE R ST 18 = TR BR A T U () - 5% 5 P
WK IE R BRE D AT 20T -

Group

rEE
2011 2010
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET

Overdue by 180 5

91 - 180 days 912180k - 1,626
181 — 365 days 181E365K - -
Over 365 days 365K A & 1,387 1,515
1,387 3,141

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

A B N 5 R R T A
S

Group

AEE
2011 2010
Us$'000 US$'000
FErx FET
Vietnam Dong HEE 20,363 24,732
us$ ETT 10,312 12,735
Renminbi AR 2,039 2,861
32,714 40,328
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12 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

13

Movements on the Group's provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

12

B RZHER (&)

AEE N SRS AR LB
0T

Group

rEE
2011 2010
Us$’000 Us$'000
FER F=T
At 1 January n—H—H 1,522 2,777
Provision for receivables impairment JIE WU IE R (B 1 - 11
Unused amounts reversed (Note 21) BB AASRE (MsE21) (139) (1,266)
At 31 December R+Z—A=+—H 1,383 1,522

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement (Note 21). Amounts charged to
the allowance account are generally written off when there is
no expectation of recovering additional cash.

e BRI BRI R EREBE S ARE
Wt RE) [TTEF ] o (BFRE21) - R
BRNRNSE R AEHEEKR@E
R RS -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 13 RERBREEED
Bank balances totaling US$27,711,000 (2010: US$8,945,000) R=_ZE——F+=-_A=+—H R17&
and US$17,067,000 (2010: US$24,421,000) as at 31 B A 27,711,000 T (ZF —F F
December 2011 were mainly placed with major state-owned 8,945,000% 7t ) &17,067,000% T ( =&
financial institutions in the PRC and Vietnam, respectively. — ZT 4 :24,421,000E 7T) 5 B FEAFEH
The remittance of these funds out of the PRC and Vietnam is MBEHNETEEENBKE ZSETE
subject to the exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC and o AR B R o 7B 3 ST R B K 4R BT O
Vietnamese governments. b B il 15 B ©
Group Company
AEE b NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
uUss$'000 Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000
TFET F=E7T FET FET
Cash at bank and on hand  RITREFRE 45,518 28,046 723 1,151
Short-term bank deposits RHRITER - 6,490 - =
Cash and cash equivalents RE&ERBEEEEY 45,518 34,536 723 1,151
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REMBHRRME
13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 13 BE&RBASEEYM(1E)
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the AEBRe A SEMRUATEREG
following currencies: & :
Group Company
rEE b N
2011 2010 2011 2010
Us$’000 us$'000 Us$’000 US$'000
FER F=T FEx F=T
Vietnam Dong WrEE 6,077 9,890 - -
uss$ ETT 11,574 15,300 550 728
Renminbi AR 27,694 8,923 - -
Hong Kong dollar BT 85 45 85 45
New Taiwan dollar ek 88 378 88 378
45,518 34,536 723 1,151
There was no short-term bank deposit held by the Group in AEBR T ——FUERFFRHRITE
2011. The effective interest rate per annum of the Group's R —E—TFAEBEBPRITFERCE
short-term bank deposits in 2010 was 12.5%. BREMER12.5% °
14 SHARE CAPITAL 14 B*E

Authorised ordinary shares

EEESBER
Par value Number of
us$ shares Us$’000
HEXT K% & B F =T
At 31 December 2011 and R_-ZT——4F
31 December 2010 +-A=+—HK
—E—FTF+_A=+—H 0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares

ERTRARTER
Par value Number of
us$ shares us$'000
HEZXET BRAEE FEx
At 31 December 2011 and RZ-T— 45
31 December 2010 +=—A=+—HX
—T—FFE+-HF=+—H 0.01 1,522,742,000 15,228
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15 RESERVES 15 Gf&
(a) Group (a) A£HE
Merger
reserve
Share Exchange (Note) Retained
premium reserve BOtRE earnings Total
R A7 5 B ER &G (&) REEF &t

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TET T T T TEL

At 1 January 2010 RZZE—ZTF—F—H 47,358 10,308 79,994 116,078 253,738
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - (1,480) (1,480)
Dividends paid BIRAR S - = = (4,840) (4,840)
Exchange translation

differences b =5 - 1,899 - - 1,899
At 31 December 2010 WR=ZT—ZTF+=-F=+—H 47,358 12,207 79,994 109,758 249,317
Representing: A :

2010 Final dividend BRERNz=—ZE—ZF

proposed REIRR S 3,670

Others Hit 106,088

Retained earnings asat R-_ZT—Z&+-HA=+—H

31 December 2010 ZIRERF 109,758
At 1 January 2011 RZFE——F—F—H 47,358 12,207 79,994 109,758 249,317
Profit for the year RELEH - - - 7,902 7,902
Dividends paid BRI S - - - (3,670) (3,670)
Exchange translation

differences fE 5 =8 - 3,061 - - 3,061
At 31 December 2011 —E——%+-A=+—H 47,358 15,268 79,994 113,990 256,610
Representing: B

2011 Final dividend BEEfz-T——%

proposed REIR S 4,740

Others Hty 109,250
Retained earnings as at T**iJr A=+—H

31 December 2011 REBF 113,990
Note: ffsE -
The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference AEBNEHHFEEIBRER=_ZSZ_F
between the nominal value of the share capital and share TZ A+ NBEKRME B EHEMMKE
premium of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group B A R A AR AR TE B R AR = B E A A
reorganisation completed on 26 December 2002 and the nominal AIFETRRMBEIT 2 RAHENZERE

value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefor.
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15 RESERVES (continued) 15 Gk (4F)
(b) Company (b) ZA2F
Share Retained
premium earnings Total
v REEF Bt
UsS$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TET FET T=r
At 1 January 2010 R=ZT—ZTF—H—H 194,098 16,490 210,588
Profit for the year REE A = 4,954 4,954
Dividends paid BIEMRE = (4,840) (4,840)
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZF+-A=+—H 194,098 16,604 210,702
Representing: P
2010 Final dividend BBk —_Z—FF
proposed REIR B 3,670
Others Hith 12,934
Retained earnings asat MRZZT—ZF+=A=+—H
31 December 2010 ZRE B 16,604
At 1 January 2011 N_E——F—H—H 194,098 16,604 210,702
Profit for the year R A = 4,205 4,205
Dividends paid BRI AR S - (3,670) (3,670)
At 31 December 2011 RZE—%+=-A=+—H 194,098 17,139 211,237
Representing: Bp:
2011 Final dividend BERNz—Z——%F
proposed REIR B 4,740
Others Hh 12,399
Retained earnings asat MRZET——F+=A=+—H
31 December 2011 ZRE B 17,139

Pursuant to Section 34 of the Cayman Companies Law
(2003 Revision) and the Articles of Association of the
Company, the share premium of the Company is available
for distribution to shareholders subject to a solvency
test on the Company and the provision of the Articles of
Association of the Company.
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16 TRADE PAYABLES 16 MEMRHER

R-ZT——F+-_HA=+—"H EHES
ERREZEHZREITAOT

At 31 December 2011, the ageing of trade payables based on
invoice date is as follows:

2011 2010

uUs$'000 Us$'000

FEx FZET

Current Bl &8 21,504 22,754
31 - 90 days 31E90K 2,259 3,224
91 - 180 days 91E 180K 33 35
181 — 365 days 181%365K 5 17
Over 365 days 365K LA £ 16 -
23,817 26,030

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are

denominated in the following currencies:

AEBZENESERIREER NIIEE

s

2011 2010
USs$'000 US$'000

FEx SFEETE

Vietnam Dong BEE 10,312 11,275
Us$ X7 12,875 14,130
Renminbi AR 630 625
23,817 26,030
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17 BANK BORROWINGS 17 SRITHESE
Group Company
rEH AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
Us$’000 us$'000 US$’000 US$'000
FEx F=T FEx F=T
Non-current Ik BN HA
Bank borrowings RITHEE
— secured (Notes 33 and 35) — A&
(HizE33%35) 15,260 19,538 - -
Current portion of non- JERNERIRITE &
current bank borrowings BV ERZB 15
— secured — B (5.314) (4,279) = =
9,946 15,259 _ _
Current I
Bank borrowings RITEE
— secured (Notes 33 and 35) — A&
(Ht3E33%35) 16,963 14,308 - -
— unsecured — R 5,850 9,288 5,850 9,288
22,813 23,596 5,850 9,288
As 31 December 2011, the Group's non-current bank R_FE——F+=-—A=+—8 F&EEZ
borrowings were repayable as follows: FEENERSRITIE B AN A T HARE(E R
Group Company
rEH AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
USs$'000 Us$'000 US$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET FE FET
Within 1 year —FR 5,314 4,279 - -
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMF 4,679 5,314 - =
Between 2 and 5 years WEZERF 5,267 9,945 - -
15,260 19,538 - -
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17 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 17 SRITHE (M)
The exposure of the Group's borrowings to and the contractual RIEBAR  AEEMEAENEEROTE
repricing dates at the end of the reporting period are as EEIEREAT
follows:
Within 1-3 3-6
1 month months months Total
—EAR —Z={@A8 ==xfAA At
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TEx TET TEx FET
At 31 December 2011 R-E——4%
+=A=+—H
Total borrowings EBEEEE 12,982 8,752 16,339 38,073
At 31 December 2010 R-E—T&
+-A=+—8
Total borrowings EY L 10,873 12,723 19,538 43,134

The exposure of the Company’s borrowings to and the

RB|EBRR ARBAAENEEROE

contractual repricing dates at the end of the reporting period EFEIERBAT
are as follows:
Within 1-3 3-6
1 month months months Total
—EAR —ZE={8A =EXRfA it
Us$'000 UsS$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TEr TEr FTxx T%rx
At 31 December 2011 R-_E——4F
+-A=t+—8
Total borrowings Sk - 5,850 - 5,850
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—FF
+=A=t—H
Total borrowings EEEsE 329 8,959 - 9,288
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17 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 17 SBITHEE (])

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the end
of the reporting period were as follows:

RBERR AEBERFHNRMT

2011 2010
New New
Taiwan Taiwan
us$ dollar us$ dollar
Y =N ETT e
Bank borrowings RITEE 3.2% - 3.1% 2.4%

The effective interest rates per annum of the Company at the
end of the reporting period were as follows:

RBERAR AAREEFMEMT

2011 2010
New New
Taiwan Taiwan
uss dollar us$ dollar
e e ETT et
Bank borrowings RITEE 3.2% - 2.2% 2.4%

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate their
fair value.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in
the following currencies:

RITEENRAEREAFERS -

fEENREERIATEEHE:

Group Company
rEE AT

2011 2010 2011 2010
Us$’000 Us$'000 uss$’000 Us$'000
TEx FET FEx FET
us$ =T 38,073 42,146 5,850 8,300
New Taiwan dollar A = 988 = 988
38,073 43,134 5,850 9,288
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18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 18 BEFER

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the principal tax
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The analysis of deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities is as

follows:

BIEFTSTRTORIE B EIRARE B2 E
EERERHN T EHR XA G EZ8H

s
B o
=57

BEFTEH (BE) /AEZHMET:

2011 2010
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Deferred income tax assets FIEFTSTE =
Deferred income tax assets to be 1P 1218 A & U B 2
recovered after more than 12 months BEMBHEAE (42) =
Deferred income tax liabilities BLEMSTHAE
Deferred income tax liabilities to be #1218 A & U4k [E 2
recovered after more than 12 months RIESHAE 6,538 7,513
Deferred income tax liabilities, net RIEFTS I B EFRE 6,496 7,513
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as RIEFTS T S FRELN T ¢
follows:
2011 2010
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January n—A—H 7,513 8,050
Income statement credit (Note 24) FFAM =S TR (H7E24) (1,017) (537)
At 31 December Wn+=—A=+—8” 6,496 7,513
Provided for in respect of: BTFSEELBE
2011 2010
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Accelerated tax depreciation IR I 3T B 7,519 8,249
Dividend withholding tax on undistributed B} B 2 &) & 5 Ik i F
profit in the PRC subsidiary ol SRk - 127
Other temporary differences Hibh s =58 (1,023) (863)
6,496 7,513
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18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

18

Accelerated tax

EFEFRSIR ()
REFRLEMSHEERBE (R RE
38 48 Rl BB RA#E R /O 45 88 AT ) H 2 B 10
T

EEFRSHAE

Dividend withholding
tax on undistributed
profits in the

depreciation PRC subsidiary Total
FERB AR RS

MEHERE BN RS ENH &t
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  USS'000  US$'000
E ETT E eV E T
AtT January W—A—AH 8,249 8,939 127 = 8,376 8,939

(Credited)/charged to the income  (5FA) /& Bl &

statement (730) (690) (127) 127 (857) (563)
At 31 December W+=A=+-8 7,519 8,249 = 127 7,519 8,376

According to the New PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the
profits of the PRC subsidiary of the Group derived since 1st
January 2008 will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of
10% upon the distribution of such profits to foreign investors.

Deferred income tax liabilities of US$790,000 (2010: Nil)
have not been recognised for the withholding tax that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of a subsidiary. Such
amounts are permanently reinvested. Unremitted earnings
totalled US$9,440,000 at 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).

Deferred income tax assets

REBEFPBECEMSHE AEBBETH
BB ARE T N\F—A-HEEL
B A A0k TONEIRE B Z L
FMIR10% AT R B IBINH -

A K 7 8 5t — D AT B 2 ) oK B o Wit 25 e A+t
Z BB ERIELEFTSH A {5790,000%
T(ZE—ZTF E) c ZEFEBKAH
EBERE R-_T——F+-_A=+—81
2 AR PE H Uk zs 4 $£49,440,0003 7T (=
T—TF )

ELEFEHEE

Other temporary differences

HirE s =48
2011 2010
Us$'000 Us$'000
TEx S
At 1 January n—HA—H (863) (889)
(Credited)/charged to income statement (5t A) /4% Bl xR (160) 26
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8 (1,023) (863)
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19 REVENUE 19 K&
The Group manufactures and sells fermentation-based AEBREREEERRQAME - &
food additives, biochemical products and cassava starch- tERERERMIFEER 2FKT
based industrial products including modified starch, glucose B BB WRE AT BB R
syrup, MSG, soda, acid and beverages. Revenue recognised B-BEZT——FR_FT—TF+=
for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 was A=+ BLEEEZEBRKZE S 5 A
US$382,900,000 and US$336,107,000 respectively. 382,900,000 Jt %336,107,0003 7T °
20 OTHER LOSSES - NET 20 HtBR-—$8
2011 2010
uUs$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Net exchange loss ME X B8 F R (964) (1,740)
Net loss from sale of electricity HEENBEFE (10) (28)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BER
plant and equipment HiEEE (146) (502)
Sale of scrap materials EERIEE 412 318
Interest income from held-to-maturity REZNHCVBEE
financial assets FEBA - 61
Others EAh 397 (185)
(311) (2,076)
21 EXPENSES BY NATURE 21 BRUESMZAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution HEKAK  HE R D #HF < RITHF X T
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BREZRAXSTHET
2011 2010
Us$’000 Us$'000
TEx F=T
Changes in inventories of X mMNEERTFEEZH
finished goods and work-in-progress (12,732) (8,548)
Raw materials and consumables used 2 A REFE 7 302,489 250,095
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) & &= # #5 (Ki5E£8) 1,487 1,490
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) o s {55 PR A 8 (BT RE6) 64 86
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B RN B & 350 329
Depreciation on property, M- WEREZETE
plant and equipment (Note 7) (HFsE7) 23,596 25,616
Impairment expense on property, Y% BE KA R E
plant and equipment (Note 7) F sz (Ff=E7) 4,255 2,055
Operating leases expenses in respect of ERAMRE L EERLY 2
leasehold land 3 163 159
Employee benefit expenses (Note 28) EEBRFHAZ (HE28) 24,654 20,759
Write back of impairment of JE WL E 5 BR SRRk (B #E B
trade receivables (Note 12) (BtsE12) (139) (1,255)
Other expenses H i 2 34,544 28,755
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution ~ $5&RA « & K5 85
expenses and administrative expenses 2 R AT 2 48 58 378,731 319,541
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22

23

P RS RAR M A

COMPENSATION TO FARMERS

On 8 October 2008, the Group received a decision from
the relevant government authority that the Group had been
in violation of certain environmental laws in Vietnam. The
Group was required to pay approximately US$16,000 and
US$7,713,000 as penalty and environmental fees respectively.
All these penalty and environmental fees were recorded in
the consolidated income statement in 2008. Due to this
environmental matter, farmer associations in Ho Chi Minh
City, Ba Ria-Vung Tau Province and Dong Nai Province in
Vietnam intended to file a court claim against the Group. On
13 August 2010, the Group agreed to provide approximately
US$11,807,000 (equivalent to VND218,949,000,000) to
farmer associations in Ho Chi Minh City, Ba Ria-Vung Tau
Province and Dong Nai Province in Vietnam. This has been
recorded in the consolidated income statement for the year

22

Eﬁnﬁ

—EEN\E+ANR AEBEEM
HHEERFEREEASEERE S
FRIFAG ZRE - ANEBEADBIZAFH
16,0003 JT }.7,713,0003% Jt £ & 51 X &
REBH -2HZEIRMIREERER
—EENFEZHEAWEER PR AR
IRIBEIA - M AAEAT B EEE KR
RERRBSEBAE LA AEER
BEE -R—_ZE—ZFFNA+=0  ~%£E
FERBmEAEEN BiEEE RRR
B RRMBEEE] ’J11,807,000%77:($H
2 $4218,949,000,000# 5 &) - 2 HpZ %

A T

%

RESREE-T SF A= F
L2 5 A WEE R Ress - AR E S

HR —_Z-—ZFN\AR_ZE——F—HAX

ended 31 December 2010. The Group paid the amount in two 1#51% IR I50% - EEREBEEE
instalments with 50% each in August 2010 and January 2011. WRABWEFR IR REBHEMALTE
The Directors obtained a legal opinion and considered that ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁfﬁf’
there is no further significant liability to any parties in relation
to this environmental matter.
FINANCE COSTS - NET 23 MBXH-2E
2011 2010
uss$‘000 Us$'000
FEx F=ET
Finance income — interest income BB A — R HAR 1T IF X
on short-term bank deposits FEWA (741) (968)
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEENERX 1,632 1,420
Amortisation of discount on long-term ENBEBEEALZ
payable to a related party (Note 34(d)) R HAFRIE I iR 5
(K 7E34(d)) 188 276
Finance costs B S 1,820 1,696
Finance costs — net MBS B —FE 1,079 728

No interest expenses on bank borrowings have been capitalised
under property, plant and equipment for current year (2010:
Nil).
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24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 24 FifSRAX
Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated i A B B I8 3t A b 5T R AR B R IR AR R
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing CEMEBERMERTERGAE -

in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income RiEE W mKR AR Z TR 81 :
statement represents:

2011 2010
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx F=ET
Enterprise income tax (“EIT") EMEH 6,101 5,119
Deferred income tax (Note 18) BIEFTIS B (FRE18) (1,017) (537)
5,084 4,582
The income tax on the Group's profit before income tax ANER B R ETFT 15 B Bl v FI A9 P 1S B B fiw
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the RAASEXZNBE AR %A (8E) K
applicable tax rate for Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation MAERAR (AR EEAREM
Limited (“Vietnam Vedan”), which is a major subsidiary of the FTEMERTE KA EREAT
Group, as follows:
2011 2010
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTXEx F=T
Profit before tax W 252 AT g A 11,021 1,955
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate of 15% & AR5 K 15%5 &
(2010: 15%) A (T —TF:
15% ) 1,653 293
Tax effects of different tax rates TRBE 2R G T E 220 129
Income not subject to tax B3 A A - (1)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes R 1,589 3,542
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax A Z A A ERT G EE
losses (10) (134)
Over-provision in prior year TRTFEBRBEREE (127) -
Tax losses arising for which no deferred EREREEMENEEM
income tax asset was recognised EEZBI5ER 1,759 753
Tax charge HIE > 5,084 4,582
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24

25

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised in respect of
tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits
is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of
US$21,544,000 (2010: US$13,845,000) to carry forward
against future taxable income. These tax losses will expire in
one to five years.

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

(i) Vietnam
The applicable EIT rates for the Group's operations in
Vietnam range from 15% to 25%, as stipulated in the
respective subsidiaries’ investment licenses.

(ii) The PRC
The applicable EIT rates for the Group’s operation in the
PRC range from 12.5% to 25%.

Shanghai Vedan, Shandong Vedan Snowflake and Xiamen
Maotai are entitled to full exemption from EIT for the first
two years and 50% reduction in EIT for the next three
years, commencing from the first profitable year after
offsetting all unexpired tax losses brought forward from
the previous years. Shanghai Vedan, Shandong Vedan
Snowflake and Xiamen Maotai have already triggered
their first years of tax exemption entitlement, in 2005,
2006 and 2008 respectively.

(iii) Singapore/Hong Kong

No Singapore/Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as

the Group had no estimated assessable profit arising in or

derived from Singapore and Hong Kong during the year.

(iv) Taiwan

The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operations in
Taiwan is 25%.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The profit attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
US$4,205,000 (2010: US$4,954,000).
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FRiSMB (&)
BEMEREETINABHEF SIS
BARERE N EHSRMEED
RSB ELRR - NEEE RERH
1% E51821,544,000( 0 (=T — & F:
13,845,000 JT ) 7] 4% 83 DA K 85 R 2R FE 2R
MBA - ZERBEEER —FERAFH
EIHf

13 P19 BHR BT 75 R R0 R R
B30T 1B 0 5B R B R AT R M
RS

(i) #MmE
EWEBARS BB AIEE]
B AE BB EA R EA R
B EN F15%%E25% °©

(i) HFE
AEEEFRBEMERNEACER
BRENTF12.5%%25% °

EBRMA - WRKHSIEREPIKSR
EEEMEBEFEABENREN
HEBEEERE BaERNFEREA
FEMFRHARERMAERER
EHEER=EFEAZ50%EEME
BER o AR IWRKASFIER
EMEZFLIHER_FTAF —F
ERER_ZEENFEATFELH

o

(iii) gk BB
B 7R & B A 7N 4F S I £ 1 3T 003
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e
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26

27

DIVIDENDS

The dividends paid in 2011 and 2010 were US$3,670,000
(0.240 US cents per ordinary share) and US$4,840,000 (0.317
US cents per ordinary share) respectively. Final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2011 of 0.311 US
cents per ordinary share, amounting to a total dividend
of US$4,740,000, is to be proposed and approved by the
shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

26

BR

2 —FRZEEFZEMNKES
7l 43,670,000 7T, ( & % & 18 %0.240%
fili) % 4,840,000 T (& A% & i#@A%0.317
EW) - pEBEE=ZF——F+=A=+—
AIEFE  REMKRAKRE ASREBR
0.3113E 1l I8 B #8 % 54,740,000 JT °
BARERREERFEFAE LIRZN
AR SR B A o 7N B 765 R 3R 3 SR S BR 1L FE AT

=

2011 2010
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx F=T
2011 final dividend, proposed of BE-ZT——FKH
0.311 US cents (2010: 0.240 US cents) P B B A P
per ordinary share 0.311%AL
—EEF:
0.240% 1) 4,740 3,670

The aggregate amounts of the dividends paid and proposed
during 2011 and 2010 have been disclosed in the income
statement in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE

(a) Basic
Basic earnings/(losses) per share is calculated by dividing
the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

27

R —FR-IT-ZEFEMEEBIKEE
LB IRIBEE DD BMED I EZ KR s
T

SREF (5E8)

(a) EX

FREXRRN, (BE) RAQEE
BARERT, (BR)BRAFRE
BT EBRINETF I E-

2011 2010
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FZET
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of 7R A TIHEHB A FE(L
the Company swm Al () 7,902 (1,480)
Weighted average number of B AT ERARNE T2
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) (AFEH) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic earnings/(losses) per share BREXAEFN (FBE)
(US cents per share) (FRZEM) 0.52 (0.10)
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27

28

29

EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted
Diluted earnings/(losses) per share is same as basic
earnings/(losses) per share as there are no dilutive
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2011 and
2010.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION)

27

28

sSEEF(BER) (&)

(b) #F
HE_ZT - —FR-_FT-ZF+=
R=+—BILFE AR ITE#HST
B SR&ERFN(FB)EER
EREH, (EE)ER -

EEREFMAX (BEEEHFM)

2011 2010
Us$’000 Us$'000
FX7t FET
Wages, basic salaries and allowances TE& - & RER 20,122 17,780
Bonuses 4L 345 -
Pension costs — defined contribution plans R {K& A — & 58 Z s+ 2 1,837 1,462
Other employee benefits H b {E 8 12 5 2,350 1,517
24,654 20,759

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 29 ERERAKIEF

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored defined contribution retirement
plans for its employees in Xiamen, Shandong and Shanghai,
the PRC. The Group contributes to the plans at rates ranging
from 8% to 22% of the basic salaries predetermined by
local governments. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees. For the year ended 31 December 2011,
the Group has contributed approximately US$589,000 (2010:
US$415,000) to the aforesaid state-sponsored retirement plans.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Vietnam, the Group
contributes to stated-sponsored employees’ social insurance
scheme for its employees in Vietnam. The Group contributes
to the scheme at a rate of 15% of the employee’s salary. The
state-sponsored social insurance scheme is responsible for
the entire obligations payable to retired employees. For the
year ended 31 December 2011, the Group has contributed
approximately US$1,094,000 (2010: US$920,000) to the
aforesaid state-sponsored social insurance scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

30 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 30
MANAGEMENT

(a)

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable
to the directors of the Company by the Group during the

year are as follows:

EEREREEEROTH

() AFEAKH

AARAREREHN K

e H)Fr B AR T

2011 2010

us$'000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Fees e - -
Basic salaries and allowances [ % o BRL 1,109 1,109
Discretionary bonuses )15 2 Y FE 4L 345 =
1,454 1,109

None of the directors of the Company waived any

emoluments during the year (2010: Nil).

The remuneration of every director of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2011 is set out below:

REFZARRDRESRLEREEAH
M(—F—FF &)

BHz—_Z—F+-_A=+—81
FEARNBSESHEMESI LT

Other
Discretionary benefits
Fees Salary bonuses (Note) Total
HitfEH
Name of Director ESpg he e HWERREL (H&E) G
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEn TER
Executive Director BIES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BEEEE - 341 125 13 479
Mr. Yang, Cheng BEXAE - 200 10 13 223
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang BEEEE - 305 110 13 428
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 150 100 13 263
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chou, Sze-Cheng AHELE - - - 12 12
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BREAKAE - - - 13 13
Independent non-executive BUkHTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong HIEREE - - - 12 12
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray RBmEE - - - 12 12
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen ffExE - - - 12 12
Total CH) = 996 345 113 1,454
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30 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 30 EEREREEEBHFMH (&)
MANAGEMENT (continued)
(@) (continued) (@) (#&)
The remuneration of every director and senior HE-_ZT - ZEF+-_A=+—H1
management of the Company for the year ended 31 FEARAZEFRGAEEEN
December 2010 is set out below: NS AT
Other
Discretionary benefits
Fees Salary bonuses (Note) Total
HER
Name of Director EEp2 he e HERREL (MzE) &t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
TEn TET T£n = TEn
Executive Director BTES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BEEEE - 341 - 13 354
Mr. Yang, Cheng BIEEA - 200 - 13 213
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang BEELE - 305 - 13 318
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 150 - 13 163
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chou, Sze-Cheng RBREE - - - 12 12
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BRARE - - - 13 13
Independent non-executive BUEHTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong by it - - - 12 12
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray REREE - - - 12 12
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen kAL - - - 12 12
Total ait - 996 - 113 1,109
Note: B &
Other benefits include travelling allowance. H th 48 A1 8 45 2= Jik 2 B o
(b)  The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest (b) AEEXFERNRAEZ=TMAL
in the Group for the year included four (2010: four) BRENE(ZE—ZF :OF)HT
executive directors, their emoluments are reflected in the B HEAMECR EXE25 2
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the MHARB - NEEZEMNTHT—H
remaining one (2010: one) individual during the year are AT (ZZE—ZF:—F)zM&m
as follows: I
2011 2010
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTER FET
Basic salaries and allowances [ %7 & OEBL 123 111
(c) During the year, no emoluments have been paid to (00 AEFEEVERAARAIEZEENIAEER
the directors of the Company or the five highest paid ANEREHFMALTZAHNE  EER
individuals of the Group as an inducement to join or as BMAKRE B EZEN SR E -
compensation for loss of office.
There are no outstanding share options as at 31 R_E——FRN_TE—ZFTF+_Hf
December 2011 and 2010. =T BEEBRERRITE-
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31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 31 EBEEZR S
2011 2010
US$‘000 Us$'000
FTEx F=T
Profit before income tax R P15 5 AL A 11,021 1,955
Adjustments for: BATIER A%
— Finance costs — net (Note 23) — MR —FE
(K7E23) 1,079 728
— Interest received from held-to-maturity ~ — 2 WA E 2| H 2 B 7%
financial assets (Note 20) BE2HE (KizF20) - (61)
— Share of post tax loss of an associate —FE(h — A= A RIBR A
(Note 10) &8 (KizE10) 222 -
— Depreciation of property, plant and — W WERRETE
equipment (Note 7) (Fi5E7) 23,596 25,616
— Provision for impairment of property, —% - HE REERE
plant and equipment (Note 7) Bt (H5E7) 4,255 2,055
— Write back of provision for —EWE 5 RFURE
impairment of trade receivables g
(Note 12) (BFsE12) (139) (1,255)
— Amortisation of intangible assets —mREEEH (M)
(Note 8) 1,487 1,490
— Amortisation of land use rights — - Hb (5 AR G
(Note 6) (Kf=E6) 64 86
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and —EEWE  HE REE
equipment (see below) BE(RTxX) 146 502
— Gain on disposal of non-current assets ~ —HEFELEIERS
held for sale (see below) EEMNE (RT3 (8.464) =
33,267 31,116
Change in working capital (excluding EEESEE (CRiTiraiRE
the effects of exchange differences on EECZERZEZRTE)
consolidation)
— Inventories —-FE (12,145) (17,597)
— Trade receivables, prepayments and —EE SR B FIE
other receivables K2 B A fE IR IR 4,155 (12,237)
— Trade payables, accruals and other —ENE SRR ETER
payables K B A FE ST 3R (9,094) 20,461
— Amount due from the non-controlling —FEN — AP B R R 3R R
interest of a subsidiary 2 5K IH - (20)
— Net changes in balance with related —HBMEARKREL
companies Z8)FE (4) 237
Cash generated from operations EBEEZHS 16,179 21,960
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31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 31 EBEEZHRE (#E)
(continued)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale it HeRERAN LEVE BEK
of property, plant and equipment and non-current assets held BERSELEERBEE 2B RIBEN
for sales comprise: ™
2011 2010
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTXEx FET
Net book amount (Note 7) BREVFE (MIFE7) 442 668
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BER&KEEE
plant and equipment (Note 20) (FfF5E20) (146) (502)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEYE HWERKEMS
plant and equipment KIE 296 166
2011 2010
Us$‘000 us$'000
FEx FET
Net book amount (Note 6) BREF(E (MzEe) 12,415 -
Transfer to land use rights (Note 6) B = + (0 R R (B 5E6) (1,574) =
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HERIELEFRBDEEZ
held for sale (Note 6(ii)) Wezs (B EE6() ) 8,464 =

Proceeds from sale of non-current assets HEFELEERBEEZ

held for sale Fr 1S 30E 19,305 -
32 COMMITMENTS 32 RKiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EXERIE
The Group's capital expenditure contracted for at the end REERKEMARETHNERESE
of the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows: ZEARZHIMT
2011 2010
Us$‘000 Us$'000
SPEDT FET
Contracted but not provided for EEESKEE S
Property, plant and equipment Y2 R R 2,115 825
Investment in an associate (Note) R—EBE AR ZRE
(BfsE) 5,190 5,190
7,305 6,015
Note: e &
Details of investment are disclosed in Note 10. REFBERITEE 108 5E
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32 COMMITMENTS (continued)

33

34

(b) Operating lease commitments
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments in respect of land and building under non-

32 R&iE(#E)

(b) BEENEE
ARERBTABEHEECEHAOM T
WEEBFARARINNEHRE

cancellable operating leases as follows: TIRAEFINT -
2011 2010
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTXEx F=T
No later than one year —FR 134 120
Later than one year and no later —FEERAFA
than five years 479 474
Later than five years hF & 3,038 3,104
3,651 3,698
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33 HRAR
At 31 December 2011, the Company has given guarantees for RZE—-——F+ZA=+—H K
bank borrowings of subsidiaries amounting to US$91,800,000 AElAEWB AR 2 RITEERMEE
(2010: US$84,800,000) of which US$59,578,000 (2010: fR%91,800,000E( L (=T — = F:
US$50,953,000) has not been utilised. 84,800,000% 7T ) + H 4159,578,0003% 7T
—Z — T :50,953,000% 7T ) [# A
=8
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3 BRAEALRS
(a) The table below summarises the related party and nature @ TR =ZZF——F+=A
of its relationship with the Company as at 31 December =t BZBEREALRHEBEARR
2011: FIERARME
Related party Relationship with the Company
BREATL BEAR QTR
Taiwan Vedan A substantial shareholder of the Company
=LA RAFHEERR
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3 FRAZEALES ()
(b) Significant related party transactions, which were carried (b) EAXREEBAEFBPEFHAEALT
out in the normal course of the Group's business are as ETHNEARZAT

follows:

2011 2010
Note US$’000 Us$'000
k=2 TEx F=T

Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan AAERSHEEE R (i) 513 4,137

Technological support fee paid to [\ & /& BR S 5 B4l

Taiwan Vedan XIEE (i) 2,734 2,441

Agency commission income A & V& R ST U ER

received from Taiwan Vedan RERASEA (if) 57 149

Notes: MsE:

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to (i) RRRIEERAMABEANTIE
the related party were conducted in the normal course N HE—RERBEBHRET B
of business at prices and terms no less favourable than BRRERTER RSB HEM
those charged to and contracted with other third party E-ZEARPRIAXNRETME
customers of the Group. B R G -

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the (il ZARAFEEFRAZERZHERER
transactions were carried out in the normal course of ¥R wARBEEGEL
business and the fees are charged in accordance with the R E -
terms of underlying agreements.

(c) Key management compensation () EEEBAEMS

The compensation paid or payable to key management,
including all executive directors, for employee services is
shown below.

ENSENERZEEAR (BHEAA
BHRITEF) ZEBRGHMHI W
To

2011 2010
Us$’000 us$'000
FEx FZET
Salaries and other short-term R E AR EE SR T
employee benefits 1,516 1,159
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

35

(d)

3 BREEALZS ()

Year-end balances with the related party (d) EBEFEBREATZFREH

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had the following RZE——F+ZA=+—H K&

significant balances with the related party: EERAFEEANT 2 EEZEHRDT

2011 2010
Note Us$’000 US$'000
k=2 FEx F=Ex

Current; BNER :

Trade receivable from Taiwan A ERTE SRR

Vedan (Note 12) (M$5E12) (i) 110 250

Other receivable from Taiwan H i fE & E R ST 5IR

Vedan (i) 518 41
Due to Taiwan Vedan FEfT &8 /W I 3RIA (i) 323 323
Current portion of the amount EREEEZEMNEE

due to Taiwan Vedan in R 3 3} IE 2 B R EB 19

connection with assignment of

trademarks (i) 2,076 1,957
Non-current: FEBNER :
Non-current portion of the FHAEEEEREN e E

amount due to Taiwan Vedan R S50 IE 2 FERNHA

in connection with assignment %)

of trademarks (ii) - 2,074

Notes: B 3

(i) All these balances with Taiwan Vedan are unsecured, (i)  BEKRANE AR BEER -
interest-free and have no fixed terms of payment. RREREEEER-

(i) The amount represents the fair value payable to Taiwan iy ZAEHERAREZETEHEM
Vedan for the assignment of certain trademarks. It is ERNEaERN ZREZAFE.
payable by seven equal annual instalment commencing HER-ZTtF—A—HE F
on 1 January 2007. The original face amount was AP BEMEFEXMN - RAEER
US$15,014,000 and was discounted to fair value using a 15,014,000 70 WiIREERHIZE
rate based on the borrowing rate of 4.7% at the date of BZEERMERATETE 2 FIREh
assignment of the trademarks (Note 23). BENFE (KFE23) -

BANKING FACILITIES 35 S|MITEH

Save as disclosed in Notes 17 and 33 to the financial
statements, the Group's bank borrowings of US$32,223,000 as
at 31 December 2011 (2010: US$33,846,000) were secured by
legal charges over certain of the Group's property, plant and
equipment (Note 7) with net book amount of approximately

US$21,104,000 (2010: US$22,715,000).

B B 7% 3R R Mt 517 R 33PT IR B & A
AEBR=ZZE——F+=_A=+—
HZ2RTHEE32,223,000 (=%
— Z £ :33,846,000% 7T ) B R A F
E#21,104,000( L (=T —F F:
22,715,000 L) 2 & T A S E Y% - K
B Rkt (KisE7) 2 A e e fEH 18 o
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AFHBME

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 BE+-A=+—HLEFEGRAEER

DECEMBER
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
SFEEm FZET FZET FZET FZET
Revenue W =5 382,900 336,107 289,137 348,557 317,431
Profit before income tax & 1S &% Al % A 11,021 1,955 23,028 13,462 20,738
Income tax expense FIeHiAx (5,084) (4,582) (5,234) (7,053) (4,878)
Profit/(loss)attributable  Z<A &
to owners of WA A
the Company FEAS i F
(E518) 7,902 (1,480) 17,983 8,403 16,856
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 31 R+-_B=+—HEoZERER
DECEMBER
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FZET FZET FZET FZET
Assets and liabilities EENEBE
Total assets BEERE 361,367 370,876 357,619 360,497 347,840
Total liabilities BERTE (89,746) (104,700) (85,968) (102,587) (90,124)
Total equity W 4858 271,621 266,176 271,651 257,910 257,716
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Reference for Shareholders

Listing Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx")
Stock Code
HKEXx 2317
Access to Bloombeg 2317 HK Equity
Access to Reuters 2317.HK
Board Lot 4,000
Par Value US$0.01
Trading Currency HKD

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Financial year ended

Full year results announced
Annual general meeting

Interim results to be announced

31 December, 2011
20 March, 2012

22 May, 2012

In the last week of
August, 2012*

* subject to change

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the
Company's Hong Kong branch share registrars:

Tengis Limited

26/F Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone : (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile : (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company’s shares should notify the Hong Kong
branch share registrars promptly of any change of addresses.

=) EBBARSARA A
(M2 pT)) E£1R

&1 X 5%

B4 22 BT 2317

ZIBhRE 2317 HK Equity

P& 45 4L A 2317 .HK

BEBM 4,000

HE 0.01% 7T

R EH & T

MBETEE

EFEEFE —E——&H+—-f=+—H

EFEBNM —E—_—H#=HA—-+H

BRAFRZ —ET-——_FRA=-+=H

FRHEAEE A —ZE——&#7A

=% — (B2 8
@ BIEHEE
B RAR 7

EREERNEFREL BN BHEART
ZEBEMBEETS R

EREERAT
BEET
ERANBER285
B E 02612

%55 ¢ (852) 2980 1768
{8 : (852) 2528 3158

FEARABRMDZAL

BRI FERE

HMARB 2 EZEBRNBFELDE

Annual Report 2011 £3% 127



Investor Relations

REEBE

Over the years, the Group has committed to maintain close contact
and good communication with investors in a professional and
open manner to collect more information and valuable opinions,
as well as providing timely disclosure of its business strategies and
directions of the Group, so as to enhance corporate governance while
strengthening investor confidence.

During the year under review, the management team had regular
meetings and conference calls with investors in Hong Kong and
was proactive in dispatching the latest information of its business
to investors. This is in line with the Group’'s commitment to keep
up open and transparent communication as well as ensuring that
investors fully understand its operations in order for them to make
sound investment decisions.

Vedan International places strong emphasis of maintaining good
investor relations. During the year under review, the Group met
with and hosted one-on-one meetings and teleconferences with
major international institutional investors including UBS, DBS Bank
and Standard Chartered Bank, employing all the different important
channels to nurture good investor relations.

In addition, the Group constantly interacts with investors via its
corporate website. During the year, the Group has posted its
announcements, annual and interim reports, and all relevant
disclosures and circulars on its website promptly for the convenient
access and reference by investors. The Company website is: http:/
www.vedaninternational.com

Vedan International welcomes all opinions and suggestions from
investors. The e-mail address of its investor relations department is
vdi@vedaninternational.com
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